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PART I�FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIND RIVER SYSTEMS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended October 31, Nine Months Ended October 31,

2002 2001 2002 2001

Revenues, net:
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Three Months Ended October 31, Nine Months Ended October 31,

Products $ 37,319 $ 53,000 $ 123,345 $ 181,220
Services 20,962 27,145 64,877 89,347

Total revenues 58,281 80,145 188,222 270,567

Cost of revenues:
Products 4,033 6,140 14,215 19,906
Services 12,514 13,842 39,494 47,160

Total cost of revenues 16,547 19,982 53,709 67,066

Gross profit 41,734 60,163 134,513 203,501

Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 27,431 35,104 93,993 118,299
Product development and engineering 18,049 21,640 56,463 68,667
General and administrative 8,749 8,802 26,430 28,642
Amortization of goodwill and purchased intangibles 2,259 13,554 6,777 69,361
Impairment of goodwill and purchased intangibles � � � 225,418
Restructuring and other nonrecurring charges � � 17,665 28,615

Total operating expenses 56,488 79,100 201,328 539,002

Loss from operations (14,754) (18,937) (66,815) (335,501)

Other income (expense)
Interest income 2,943 3,364 9,482 12,652
Interest expense (1,717) (1,495) (5,277) (5,701)
Other expense, net (815) (4,576) (5,950) (5,492)

Total other income (expense) 411 (2,707) (1,745) 1,459

Loss before provision for (benefit from) income taxes and
extraordinary gain (14,343) (21,644) (68,560) (334,042)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes � (1,843) 775 (7,841)

Loss before extraordinary gain (14,343) (19,801) (69,335) (326,201)
Extraordinary gain, net of income taxes � 568 � 568

Net loss $ (14,343) $ (19,233) $ (69,335) $ (325,633)

Extraordinary gain per share $ � $ 0.01 $ � $ 0.01
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.18) $ (0.25) $ (0.88) $ (4.21)
Shares used in basic and diluted per share calculation 79,089 77,820 78,965 77,320

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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WIND RIVER SYSTEMS, INC.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value)
(Unaudited)

October 31,
2002

January 31,
2002

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,462 $ 131,067
Short-term investments 29,571 22,364
Accounts receivable, net 42,179 61,109
Prepaid and other current assets 12,787 18,404

Total current assets 129,999 232,944

Investments 157,577 123,136
Property and equipment, net 48,303 59,804
Intangibles, net 102,448 108,409
Other assets 15,026 19,644
Restricted cash 63,683 63,683

Total assets $ 517,036 $ 607,620

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 5,196 $ 7,191
Line of credit � 14,988
Accrued liabilities 22,679 19,346
Accrued restructuring costs 2,983 5,243
Accrued compensation 14,976 17,575
Income taxes payable 4,515 7,485
Deferred revenues 29,429 34,656

Total current liabilities 79,778 106,484

Convertible subordinated debt 150,000 150,000
Other long-term liabilities 4,957 2,995

Total liabilities 234,735 259,479

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, par value $0.001; 325,000 shares authorized; 81,301 and 79,863
shares issued at October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002, respectively; 79,066 and
78,586 shares outstanding at October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002,
respectively 81 80
Additional paid-in-capital 745,915 737,595
Loan to stockholder (1,977) (1,893)
Treasury stock, 2,235 and 1,277 shares at cost at October 31, 2002 and January
31, 2002, respectively (34,185) (29,488)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,810) (4,765)
Accumulated deficit (422,723) (353,388)
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October 31,
2002

January 31,
2002

Total stockholders' equity 282,301 348,141

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 517,036 $ 607,620

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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WIND RIVER SYSTEMS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended October 31,

2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (69,335) $ (325,633)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operations:

Depreciation and amortization 22,401 83,676
Non-cash charge for other-than-temporary decline in investments 4,467 11,146
Non-cash restructuring charge 1,545 1,411
Non-cash compensation, including 401(k) match 2,002 2,208
Impairment of capitalized internal use software � 1,204
Interest on loan to stockholder (84) (79)
Impairment of goodwill and purchased intangibles � 225,418
Loss on asset dispositions 353 �
Realized gain on repurchase of convertible subordinated notes � (1,202)
Deferred income taxes 69 (4,919)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquired businesses:

Accounts receivable, net 18,930 40,264
Accounts payable (1,995) (8,447)
Accrued restructuring costs (2,227) 14,969
Accrued liabilities 3,151 (11,878)
Accrued compensation (2,599) (4,148)
Income taxes payable (3,785) (2,159)
Deferred revenue (5,227) (16,496)
Other assets & liabilities 5,308 13,682

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (27,026) 19,017

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (4,921) (14,169)
Capitalized software development costs (969) (801)
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Nine Months Ended October 31,

Purchase of investments (204,528) (217,247)
Sales of investments 116,081 223,035
Maturities of investments 48,060 76,995
Acquisition, net of cash (175) (43,427)
Restricted cash � (1,982)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (46,452) 22,404

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock 6,346 12,200
Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes � (74,458)
Acquisition of treasury stock (4,697) �
Borrowings (repayment) of line of credit (14,988) 1,870

Net cash used in financing activities (13,339) (60,388)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,212 (1,339)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (85,605) (20,306)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 131,067 92,431

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 45,462 $ 72,125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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WIND RIVER SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

        The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes of Wind River Systems, Inc. ("Wind River") are
unaudited. However, in the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that are necessary for a
fair presentation of the financial position as of October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002, the results of operations for the three and nine months
ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, and cash flows for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001 have been included. These condensed
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in
Wind River's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 30, 2002 ("2002 Form 10-K"). The results of operations for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 are not necessarily
indicative of results to be expected for the entire fiscal year, which ends on January 31, 2003, or for any future period.

        In accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements may omit or condense certain information and disclosures normally required for a complete set of financial statements prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Accordingly, certain information and disclosures normally included in
financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. The condensed
consolidated balance sheet at January 31, 2002 was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by
GAAP. Wind River's management believes that the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements contain disclosures adequate to
make the information presented not misleading.
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        The condensed consolidated financial statements include the financial information of Wind River and its subsidiaries. All significant
inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Wind River has a reporting year ending January 31 while, through December 31,
2001, its international subsidiaries (outside of North America) had reporting years ending December 31; thus, the condensed consolidated
financial statements for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001 include such subsidiaries' results for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2001. Effective January 31, 2002, each of Wind River's international subsidiaries (outside of North America) changed its
reporting year to end on January 31 rather than December 31; thus, the condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and nine
months ended October 31, 2002 include such subsidiaries' results for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002.

        Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation for the current period.

Note 2: Acquisitions

        Wind River has completed a number of acquisitions accounted for as purchase transactions. The condensed consolidated financial
statements include the operating results of each business from the date of acquisition. The purchase price for each acquisition is allocated to the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the basis of the estimated fair values on the effective date of the
acquisition.

        On April 18, 2001, Wind River purchased certain identified software products, including an operating system for digital signal processors
from Eonic Systems, Inc. ("Eonic"). The total purchase price of $15.5 million consisted of $15.0 million in cash and approximately $542,000 in
acquisition-related costs.

4

        On May 4, 2001, Wind River purchased from Berkeley Software Design, Inc. ("BSDI") certain identified software assets, including the
BSDI operating system, a UNIX-based code suitable for various Internet applications, for a total purchase price of $23.4 million, consisting of
approximately $22.9 million in cash and $507,000 in acquisition-related costs. Prior to the closing of the transaction, Wind River lent
$7.5 million to BSDI to repay BSDI creditors. The loan was repaid in full in connection with the closing of the asset sale.

        On October 10, 2001, Wind River purchased the assets of Telenetworks, a business unit of Next Level Communications, Inc. The assets
acquired in the transaction included software stacks that implement the signaling and control mechanisms used in voice-over-IP networks,
customer lists and other assets. The total net purchase price of $5.6 million consisted of approximately $5.5 million in net cash and $100,000 in
acquisition-related costs.

        Pro forma results of the Eonic, BSDI and Telenetworks purchases have not been presented because the effects were not material to the
condensed consolidated financial statements of Wind River.

        Refer to Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Wind River's 2002 Form 10-K for further details of acquisitions
completed during the fiscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

5

        The table below sets forth the amortization expense, foreign currency translation and other adjustments for the nine months ended
October 31, 2002 and the net book value of goodwill and purchased intangibles as of October 31, 2002 for certain acquisitions completed during
fiscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Acquisitions

(In thousands) Telenetworks BSDI Eonic Rapid ICESoft AudeSi

Embedded
Support

Tools

Software
Development

Systems Other Total

Total at acquisition

Goodwill $ 2,354 $ 20,073 $ 11,664 $ 49,028 $ 23,961 $ 50,180 $ 317,393 $ 23,018 $ 8,964 $ 506,635
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Acquisitions

Purchased intangibles 2,875 3,410 3,870 7,000 750 1,100 15,800 12,100 655 47,560

5,229 23,483 15,534 56,028 24,711 51,280 333,193 35,118 9,619 554,195
Disposition as of Jan.
31, 2002

Goodwill � 215 � � 3,062 � � � � 3,277
Purchased
Technology � � � � 468 � � � � 468

� 215 � � 3,530 � � � � 3,745
Impairment as of Jan.
31, 2002

Goodwill � � � 24,024 15,255 35,397 167,481 13,811 � 255,968

Purchased intangibles � � � � � 440 � 977 � 1,417

� � � 24,024 15,255 35,837 167,481 14,788 � 257,385
Accumulated
amortization, foreign
translation and other
adjustments as of
Jan. 31, 2002

Goodwill � 3,764 2,187 14,841 5,644 14,632 107,474 7,385 6,151 162,078

Purchased intangibles 220 639 726 2,220 282 466 7,242 10,128 655 22,578

220 4,403 2,913 17,061 5,926 15,098 114,716 17,513 6,806 184,656
Additions as of Oct. 31,
2002�Goodwill � � � � � � � � 175 175

Amortization expense,
foreign translation and
other adjustments for the
nine months ended
October 31,
2002�Purchased
intangibles 539 640 725 1,313 � 64 2,962 534 (641) 6,136

Net book value at
Oct. 31, 2002

Goodwill 2,354 16,094 9,477 10,163 � 151 42,438 1,822 2,988 85,487

Purchased intangibles 2,116 2,131 2,419 3,467 � 130 5,596 461 641 16,961

$ 4,470 $ 18,225 $ 11,896 $ 13,630 $ �$ 281 $ 48,034 $ 2,283 $ 3,629 $ 102,448

Fiscal year acquired 2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 various
Impairment of Goodwill and Purchased Intangibles

        During the second and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2002,Wind River identified indicators of possible impairment of goodwill and other
acquired intangible assets relating to previous acquisitions. These indicators included the deterioration in the business climate, changes in sales
and cash flow forecasts, strategic plans for certain of the acquired businesses and significant declines in the market values of companies in the
embedded software industry. Accordingly, Wind River compared the undiscounted cash flows associated with the acquired businesses and
long-lived assets with the respective carrying amounts and determined that an impairment of certain of these assets existed. As a result, during
the second and fourth quarters of fiscal 2002, Wind River recorded an aggregate charge of $225.4 million and $32.0 million, respectively,
related to the impairment of goodwill and purchased intangible assets. The impaired amount was measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeded the respective present value of the estimated future cash flows for goodwill and purchased intangible assets presented in the
table above.

6
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         The impairment charge for those assets held for use was determined based upon the estimated discounted cash flows over the remaining
useful life of the goodwill using discount rates ranging from 17% to 23%. The assumptions supporting the cash flows, including the discount
rates, were determined using Wind River's best estimates as of the date of the impairment review. The impairment charge for those assets held
for disposal was determined based on the expected proceeds of disposition. As of October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002, Wind River had net
book values in goodwill and purchased intangible assets of approximately $102.4 million and $108.4 million, respectively. Accumulated
amortization for goodwill and purchased intangibles as of October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002 was $190.8 million and $183.4 million,
respectively. Amortization expense relating to completed technology for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001 was $1.7 million
and $1.9 million, respectively, and was $5.1 million and $6.3 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Other
than goodwill, all identifiable intangible assets of approximately $17.0 million in net book value as of October 31, 2002 will continue to be
amortized in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS 142").

        Wind River adopted SFAS 142 on February 1, 2002, and accordingly, ceased amortizing goodwill with net book value totaling
$85.3 million, including $8.5 million of acquired workforce previously classified as purchased intangibles. The following table presents the
impact of SFAS 142 on net loss and net loss per share had SFAS 142 been applicable for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001:

Three Months
Ended October 31,

Nine Months
Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2002 2001

Reported loss $ (14,343) $ (19,233) $ (69,335) $ (325,633)
Adjustments:

Amortization of goodwill � 10,356 � 59,873
Amortization of acquired workforce previously classified as
purchased intangible assets � 945 � 2,315

Net adjustments � 11,301 � 62,188

Adjusted net loss $ (14,343) $ (7,932) $ (69,335) $ (263,445)

Reported net loss per share�
basic and diluted $ (0.18) $ (0.25) $ (0.88) $ (4.21)
Adjusted net loss per share�
basic and diluted $ (0.18) $ (0.10) $ (0.88) $ (3.41)
        The estimated future amortization expense of purchased intangible assets is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 31,

Amount
(In thousands)

2003* $ 2,260
2004  8,609
2005  4,818
2006  1,274

*    Remaining three months
        As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142, Wind River was required to perform an assessment of whether there was an indication that
goodwill was impaired. To accomplish this, Wind River was required to identify its reporting units and determine the carrying value of each
reporting unit by

7
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assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of February 1, 2002. Wind
River currently operates in one reportable segment, which is also the only reporting unit for purposes of SFAS 142. Since Wind River currently
only has one reporting unit, all of the goodwill has been assigned to the enterprise as a whole. In July 2002, Wind River completed the
transitional goodwill impairment tests required by SFAS 142 with the assistance of a third-party valuation consultant, and determined that the
goodwill was not impaired at February 1, 2002. The discounted cash flow method was the primary method used to determine the fair values for
SFAS 142 impairment purposes.

        SFAS 142 also requires that Wind River test goodwill for impairment on an annual basis as well as when circumstances indicate a possible
impairment. Wind River has determined that it will conduct its annual impairment tests during its second fiscal quarter. The deterioration of the
telecommunications industry as well as the decline in Wind River's current product sales in the second quarter of fiscal 2003 were factors that
also required Wind River to evaluate the fair value of the goodwill. Therefore, during the quarter ended July 31, 2002, Wind River completed its
annual impairment test and its second quarter trigger test with the assistance of a third-party valuation consultant, and concluded that there was
no impairment of goodwill. The discounted cash flow method was the primary method used to determine the fair values for SFAS 142
impairment purposes. The assumptions supporting the cash flows, including the discount rate, which was assumed to be 17%, were determined
using Wind River's best estimates as of the date of the impairment review.

        See Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for further information about the impairment review Wind River commenced after the quarter ended
October 31, 2002.

Note 3: Revenue Recognition

        Wind River derives revenue from two sources: (i) product revenue and (ii) service revenue. Product revenues consist of royalties and fees
for operating systems and fees for the use of development tools. Wind River licenses its software products under perpetual as well as time-based
arrangements. Service revenues are derived from fees from professional services, which include design and development fees, software
maintenance contracts, and customer training and consulting. Maintenance contract renewals are generally sold separately from Wind River's
products. Wind River's customers consist of end users, distributors, original equipment manufacturers, system integrators and value-added
resellers. Agreements generally do not allow the right of return or sales price adjustments.

        Wind River recognizes revenue in accordance with Statement of Position ("SOP") 97-2, "Software Revenue Recognition," as amended,
SOP 81-1, "Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts" and Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB")
101, "Revenue Recognition."

        Wind River recognizes revenue when (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the vendor's fee is
fixed or determinable and (iv) vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE") exists to allocate the total fee to all undelivered elements of the
arrangement and collection is determined to be probable. These four criteria are further described below:

        Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists.    Wind River's customary practice is to have written non-cancelable contracts and
a customer purchase order prior to recognizing revenue on an arrangement.

        Delivery has occurred.    Product revenues for software and hardware are recognized at the time of shipment or upon the delivery
of a product master, with standard title transfer terms of FOB shipping point. If undelivered products or services exist that are essential
to the functionality of the delivered product in an arrangement, delivery is not considered to have occurred. If evidence of fair value of
all undelivered elements exists, then revenue is recognized using the residual method.

8

Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee is
recognized as revenue.

        Wind River recognizes revenues from one-year, time-based licenses ratably over the term of the agreement. For multi-year
time-based licenses, Wind River defers recognition of the fees associated with the VSOE of the maintenance and support over the term
of the license and recognizes the residual contract amount in the period in which the agreement is signed, so long as it has VSOE for
undelivered elements, which typically consist of maintenance and support. Where VSOE does not exist for undelivered elements,
Wind River recognizes the fees ratably over the term of the multi-year license.

Edgar Filing: WIND RIVER SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

10



        Sales to distributors, original equipment manufacturers, system integrators and value-added resellers are recognized either at the
time the risks of ownership have transferred or upon receipt of royalty reports related to the sale of product to an end-user, depending
on Wind River's historical experience with these customers.

        Service revenues from professional services contracts are recognized as the services are performed for time-and-materials
contracts and using the percentage-of-completion basis for fixed-price contracts. Service revenues from software maintenance, support
and update fees are recognized ratably over the contract period, which in most instances is one year. Service revenues from training
and consulting are recognized when the services are provided.

        The vendor's fee is fixed or determinable.    At the time of each transaction, Wind River assesses whether the fee associated with a
revenue transaction is fixed or determinable based on the payment terms associated with the transaction. If any portion of a fee is due
after Wind River's standard payment terms, which are generally no greater than 90 days from invoice date, Wind River accounts for
the fee as not being fixed or determinable. In these cases, revenue is recognized as the fees become due.

        VSOE exists and collection is probable.    Wind River assesses probability of collection based on a number of factors, including
its past transaction history with the customer and the credit-worthiness of the customer. New customers and certain existing customers
are subject to a credit review process that evaluates the customers' financial position and ultimately their ability to pay according to the
original terms of the arrangement. Based on Wind River's review process, if it is determined from the outset of an arrangement that
collection of the resulting receivable is not probable, then revenue is recognized on a cash-collected basis.

        Significant management judgments and estimates are made in connection with the revenues recognized in any accounting period. Wind
River must assess whether the fee associated with a revenue transaction is fixed or determinable and whether or not collection is probable. In
addition, significant estimates are made for professional services arrangements. Material differences could result in the amount and timing of
revenues for any period if management were to make different judgments or utilize different estimates.

Note 4: Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments and Restricted Cash

        Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less. These fixed
income securities are readily convertible to cash and are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Fair value is determined based upon the
quoted market prices of the securities as of the balance sheet date.

        Investments with original maturities greater than three months and less than or equal to one year are classified as short-term investments.
Investments with original maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term investments. Wind River accounts for its investments,
including marketable equity securities, money market funds, municipal bonds, U.S. government and agency obligations,

9

corporate bonds and other debt securities, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, "Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities." Wind River determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase and
re-evaluates such classification at each balance sheet date. Wind River has classified all of its investments as available-for-sale and carries such
investments at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in the accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) component of
stockholders' equity until disposition. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Realized gains or losses and
declines in value, which are judged to be other-than-temporary, are reported in other income or expense.

        Wind River values its publicly held investments using the closing price of the stock at the end of each month. As a result, Wind River
reflects these investments on its balance sheet as of October 31, 2002, as long-term investments, at their aggregate market value of
approximately $244,000. During the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002, Wind River recorded an impairment charge on these
publicly held investments of $208,000 and $467,000, respectively, which represented the amount of other-than-temporary decline as of the date
of impairment.

        Wind River has certain other minority investments in non-publicly traded companies. These investments were included as a component of
other long-term assets on Wind River's balance sheet and were carried at cost, subject to adjustment for impairment. Due to the economic
downturn and specifically the decline in the telecommunications sector, Wind River recorded impairment losses on its investments in private
companies of $3.6 million and $6.9 million during the three and nine-month periods ended October 31, 2001, respectively, and an additional
$4.0 million in the quarter ended July 31, 2002. As a result of the write-down in the quarter ended July 31, 2002, Wind River had no remaining
book value on its balance sheet relating to private company investments.
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        Restricted cash consists of the investments held as collateral under the operating leases for Wind River's headquarters and interest rate swap
agreements. See Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for a further discussion of the interest rate swap agreements and the operating leases.

Note 5: Derivative Financial Instruments

        Wind River enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to manage foreign currency exposures related to certain foreign
currency denominated inter-company balances. Additionally, Wind River may adjust its foreign currency hedging position by taking out
additional contracts or by terminating or offsetting existing forward contracts. These adjustments may result from changes in the underlying
foreign currency exposures or from fundamental shifts in the economics of particular exchange rates. Gains and losses on terminated forward
contracts, or on contracts that are offset, are recognized in income in the period of contract termination or offset. As of October 31, 2002, Wind
River had outstanding forward contracts with notional amounts of $11.6 million. As of January 31, 2002, Wind River had no outstanding
forward contracts.

        In March 1998, Wind River entered into an interest rate swap agreement to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on its first floating
rate operating lease for its corporate headquarters. The interest rate swap effectively changes Wind River's interest rate exposure on its operating
lease, which based on the one-month London interbank offering rate ("LIBOR"), to a fixed rate of 5.9%. As of both October 31, 2002 and
January 31, 2002, the notional amount of this interest rate swap was $28.5 million.

        In January 2001, Wind River entered into a second interest rate swap agreement to mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates on its
second floating rate operating lease for additional construction at its headquarters facility. This second interest rate swap changes Wind River's
interest rate exposure on its second operating lease, which is based on the one-month LIBOR, to a fixed rate of 5.6%. As of both October 31,
2002 and January 31, 2002, the notional amount of this interest rate
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swap was $27.9 million. Wind River's potential credit exposure under the interest rate swaps (arising from the inability of the counter parties to
meet the terms of their contracts) is limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counter parties' obligations exceed the obligations of Wind
River.

        The fair value of these interest rate swap liabilities was approximately $5.0 million and $2.6 million at October 31, 2002 and January 31,
2002, respectively, and has been recorded as an other long-term liability and as a component of comprehensive loss in stockholders' equity. See
Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for a further discussion of these interest rate swap liabilities.

Note 6: Restructuring and Other Nonrecurring Costs

        Restructuring and other nonrecurring costs consist of costs associated with restructuring programs implemented by Wind River and costs
associated with the settlement of litigation and related remediation efforts.

Restructuring Costs

        In May 2001, Wind River announced initial cost control measures that included a reduction of its worldwide work force, organizational
restructuring and certain measures aimed at controlling operational expenses. In May 2002, Wind River announced additional cost control
measures that included further reduction of its worldwide work force and measures focused on further reducing operational expenses. In both the
May 2001 and May 2002 restructuring programs, Wind River made permanent and temporary adjustments to the business operations in order to
optimize operating efficiency.

        As a result of the decisions to restructure its business, Wind River recorded restructuring costs of $13.9 million and $28.6 million in the
quarters ended July 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in each case classified as operating expenses. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, Wind
River recorded a reversal of $6.9 million such that the net restructuring charge for fiscal year 2002 was $21.7 million.

        As of January 31, 2002, the remaining restructuring liabilities related to the May 2001 restructuring program totaled $5.2 million. The
following table provides detailed restructuring liabilities at the end of the fiscal year 2002; total charges recorded, cash payments made and
non-cash write-offs for the nine months ended October 31, 2002; and the aggregate remaining restructuring liabilities for both the May 2001 and
the May 2002 restructuring programs as of October 31, 2002:

For the Nine Months Ended October 31, 2002
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(In thousands)

Restructuring
Liabilities as of

January 31, 2002
Cash

Charges
Non-Cash
Charges

Total
Charges

Cash
Payments

Non-Cash
Write-Offs

Restructuring
Liabilities as of
Oct. 31, 2002

Work force reduction $ 4,294 $ 10,429 $ �$ 10,429 $ (13,289) $ (202) $ 1,232
Consolidation of excess facilities 949 1,607 355 1,962 (913) (347) 1,651
Other � 356 1,190 1,546 (263) (1,183) 100

Total $ 5,243 $ 12,392 $ 1,545 $ 13,937 $ (14,465) $ (1,732) $ 2,983

        The following paragraphs provide detailed information relating to the restructuring costs that were recorded during the quarters ended
July 31, 2002 and 2001.

        Worldwide Work Force Reduction.    The May 2002 and 2001 restructuring programs resulted in the reduction of 219 and 425 employees,
respectively, across all business functions, operating units and geographic regions. The worldwide work force reductions implemented as part of
the May 2001 restructuring were substantially completed as of July 31, 2002. The May 2002 worldwide work force reduction started in the
quarter ended July 31, 2002, and was substantially completed as of October 31, 2002. In addition, the number of contractors and temporary
workers employed by Wind River was reduced as a result of both restructuring programs.

11

         Wind River recorded work force reduction charges of approximately $10.4 million and $20.1 million during the quarters ended July 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, relating primarily to severance payments and the continuation of benefits. During the quarter ended July 31, 2001,
equipment disposed of or removed from operations as a result of the work force reduction resulted in a charge of $765,000 and consisted
primarily of computer equipment.

        Consolidation of Excess Facilities.    Wind River recorded restructuring charges of $2.0 million and $8.4 million during the quarters ended
July 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, relating to the consolidation of certain excess facilities primarily in the United States, Japan and the United
Kingdom. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, Wind River recorded a reversal of $6.9 million against the $8.4 million charge after Wind River
determined that it would be more efficient and cost-effective if certain of such facilities continued to be used by Wind River personnel. The
consolidation of excess facilities includes the closure of certain leased corporate facilities and sales offices that related to business activities that
were restructured. The estimated excess facility costs represent the remaining lease payments and estimated costs less estimated proceeds from
sub-leasing certain facilities. The estimated proceeds from sub-leasing these facilities are based on current comparable rates for leases in the
respective markets. If the facilities operating lease rental rates continue to decrease in these markets or it takes longer than expected to find a
suitable tenant to sublease these facilities, the actual loss could exceed this estimate. Cash and non-cash charges relate primarily to lease
terminations, non-cancelable lease costs and impairment of leasehold improvements related to the excess facilities. Amounts accrued related to
the net lease expense due to the consolidation of excess facilities consolidated as a result of the May 2002 and May 2001 restructuring programs
will be paid through fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, unless Wind River successfully negotiates to exit the leases at an earlier date. See
Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for a discussion about Wind River's announcement in November 2002 of another restructuring program.

        Other Items.    During the quarter ended July 31, 2002, Wind River recorded a restructuring charge of $1.5 million relating to other items,
primarily consisting of the write-offs of capitalized software, leasehold improvements associated with office closures and inventory relating to
products that management decided to discontinue during the quarter.

Litigation-related costs

        During the nine months ended October 31, 2002, Wind River recorded a charge of $3.7 million relating to the settlement of litigation with a
third party and related remediation efforts.

Note 7: Other Borrowings

        As of July 31, 2002, Wind River had United States dollar equivalent net borrowings of $12.1 million from a line of credit obtained through
its Japanese subsidiary for up to 2.1 billion Japanese yen or approximately $17.6 million. Wind River extended the line of credit until August 30,
2002, at an average annual interest rate of 2.9% on any borrowed amount. On August 30, 2002, Wind River repaid the entire line of credit
obtained through its Japanese subsidiary.
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Note 8: Stockholder's Equity

Stock Repurchase Program

        In June 2002, the Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to enable Wind River to acquire outstanding common stock in
the open market or negotiated transactions. Under the program, Wind River may, but is not required to, purchase up to $30.0 million of Wind
River common stock over two years. During the quarter ended October 31, 2002, Wind River repurchased 196,000 shares of Wind River
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $759,000. During the nine months ended October 31, 2002, Wind River
repurchased 958,500 shares of Wind River
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common stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $4.7 million. Purchases were made on the Nasdaq Stock Market at prevailing
open market prices and paid out of general corporate funds. Shares repurchased through the program are held as treasury stock.

Comprehensive Loss

        Comprehensive loss is defined as the change in equity of a company during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances
excluding transactions resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. The difference between net loss and comprehensive
loss for Wind River results from foreign currency translation adjustments, mark-to-market adjustments on interest rate swap and unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes.

        Comprehensive loss for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:

Three Months Ended
October 31,

Nine Months Ended
October 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2002 2001

Net loss $ (14,343) $ (19,233) $ (69,335) $ (325,633)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments (282) 448 1,212 (1,724)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net 1,203 2,030 1,142 946
Fair value measurement of interest rate swap (893) � (2,399) �

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 28 2,478 (45) (778)

Total comprehensive loss $ (14,315) $ (16,755) $ (69,380) $ (326,411)

Note 9: Net Loss Per Share Computation

        In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, "Earnings Per Share," the calculation of shares used in basic and
diluted net loss per share computation is presented below:

Three Months Ended
October 31,

Nine Months Ended
October 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2002 2001

Shares used in basic net loss per share computation 79,089 77,820 78,965 77,320
Effect of dilutive potential common shares � � � �

Shares used in diluted net loss per share computation 79,089 77,820 78,965 77,320
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Three Months Ended
October 31,

Nine Months Ended
October 31,

        The effect of assumed conversion of the convertible subordinated notes of 6.2 million shares for both the three and nine months ended
October 31, 2002, and 2.0 million shares for both the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001, is anti-dilutive, and is therefore excluded
from both of the above computations. In addition, dilutive potential common shares totaling approximately 89,000 and 781,000 for the three and
nine months ended October 31, 2002, respectively, and 1.1 million and 1.9 million for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001,
respectively, were excluded from the computation of the number of shares used in the diluted net loss per share calculations as their inclusion
would be anti-dilutive. Since Wind River has a net loss for all periods presented, net loss per share on a diluted basis is equivalent to basic net
loss per share.

Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies

        In fiscal 1998, Wind River entered into an operating lease for its headquarters facility constructed on the land Wind River purchased in
Alameda, California under terms and conditions commonly
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known as a "synthetic lease." In fiscal 2000, Wind River entered into a second operating lease agreement for the construction of two additional
buildings at its headquarters facility. None of Wind River's officers or employees has any financial interest in these synthetic lease arrangements.

        The lessor has funded a total of $32.4 million of construction costs related to the first operating lease and $25.0 million of construction
costs related to the second operating lease. The operating lease payments under both leases vary based upon the total construction costs of the
property, including capitalized interest at LIBOR. In connection with the lease of Wind River's headquarters, Wind River leased the land to the
lessor of the building at a nominal rate and for a term of 55 years. If Wind River were to terminate the ground lease prior to maturity, it would be
obligated to purchase the buildings for 100% of the amount financed. The operating leases provide Wind River with the option, at the end of
their terms, to either acquire the buildings at the lessor's original cost or arrange for the buildings to be acquired. Both leases have initial terms of
seven years, but may be renewed under certain circumstances. Unless renewed or earlier terminated, the first lease will terminate in
September 2004 and the second lease will terminate in November 2006. In November 2002, Wind River's Board of Directors authorized
management to exercise the purchase option under each of the operating leases for the buildings at its Alameda headquarters. See Note 13,
"Subsequent Events," for further information about Wind River's decision to exercise its purchase option under the operating leases.

        Under the terms of the leases, Wind River must maintain compliance with certain financial covenants, relating to minimum consolidated
fixed charge ratio, minimum EBITDA, minimum tangible net worth and minimum net unencumbered cash. As of October 31, 2002, Wind River
was in compliance with each of the applicable covenants. There can be no assurance that Wind River will continue to be in compliance with
these covenants, particularly if its revenues continue to be negatively impacted by the economy or other factors or if Wind River is not able to
control its costs adequately. Further, in the event Wind River was not in compliance with the covenants, there can be no assurance that it would
be able to obtain a waiver or amendment of the covenants, and if it could not, Wind River may become obligated to purchase the buildings and
could incur additional costs associated with replacing the synthetic leases. In the event of a default, Wind River's obligation to purchase the
leased properties for 100% of the amount financed by the lessor could be accelerated. See Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for further information
about Wind River's decision to exercise its purchase option under the operating leases.

        Wind River has guaranteed the residual value associated with the buildings under the first operating lease and the second operating lease to
the lessor of a fixed amount of approximately 82% and 85%, respectively, of the lessor's actual funding of the two leases. If Wind River does not
purchase the buildings upon maturity of the operating leases, it may be obligated to pay the amount of the residual value guarantee to the lessor.
See Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for further information about Wind River's decision to exercise its purchase option under the operating
leases. Wind River has deposited fixed income securities with a custodian to ensure the performance of its obligations under the leases; as of
October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002, Wind River held $60.3 million in cash and cash equivalents as restricted cash in satisfaction of this
requirement. In addition, as of October 31, 2002, Wind River held $3.4 million of restricted cash associated with related interest rate swaps. See
Note 13, "Subsequent Events," for further information on the restricted cash relating to the interest rate swap agreements. The amounts held as
restricted cash as of October 31, 2002 are sufficient to satisfy performance of Wind River's obligations under the operating leases. The majority
of restricted cash represents the costs incurred for construction of the buildings.

        From time to time, Wind River is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business, including claims of alleged
infringement of patents and other intellectual property rights. Wind River is not currently aware of any legal proceedings or claims that Wind
River believes will
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have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on Wind River's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 11: Segment and Geographic Information

        Wind River reports in one industry segment�technology for embedded systems. Wind River markets its products and related services
primarily to customers in North America, Europe, Japan and Asia Pacific. Internationally, Wind River markets its products and services
primarily through its subsidiaries and various distributors. Revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on the country in which the
customer is domiciled. The distribution of revenues and long-lived assets, net by geographic location is as follows:

Revenues

Three Months
Ended

October 31,

Nine Months
Ended

October 31,

Long-Lived Assets

As of
October 31,

2002

As of
January 31,

2002(In thousands) 2002 2001 2002 2001

North America $ 34,715 $ 48,581 $ 110,105 $ 166,907 $ 152,669 $ 173,903
Japan 7,288 8,198 20,157 26,559 6,063 7,385
Other international 16,278 23,366 57,960 77,101 7,045 6,569

Consolidated $ 58,281 $ 80,145 $ 188,222 $ 270,567 $ 165,777 $ 187,857

        Other international consists of the revenues and long-lived assets of operations in Europe and Asia Pacific.

        Revenue information on a product and services basis is as follows:

Three Months Ended
October 31,

Nine Months Ended
October 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2002 2001

Software license revenues $ 23,346 $ 35,465 $ 75,013 $ 123,421
Run-time license revenues 13,973 17,535 48,332 57,799
Maintenance revenues 12,632 15,300 38,202 50,108
Other service revenues 8,330 11,845 26,675 39,239

Total $ 58,281 $ 80,145 $ 188,222 $ 270,567

        No single customer accounted for more than 10% of Wind River's total revenues in the three or nine months ended October 31, 2002 and
2001.

Note 12: Recent Accounting Pronouncements

        In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, "Accounting for
Exit or Disposal Activities" ("SFAS 146"). SFAS 146 addresses significant issues regarding the recognition, measurement, and reporting of
costs that are associated with exit and disposal activities, including restructuring activities that are currently accounted for under Emerging
Issues Task Force ("EITF") No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)" ("EITF No. 94-3"). The scope of SFAS 146 also includes costs related to terminating a
contract that is not a capital lease and termination benefits that employees who are involuntarily terminated receive under the terms of a one-time
benefit arrangement that is not an ongoing benefit arrangement or an individual deferred-compensation contract. SFAS 146 will be effective for
exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002 and early application is encouraged. The provisions of EITF No. 94-3 shall
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continue to apply for an exit activity initiated under an exit plan that

15

met the criteria of EITF No. 94-3 prior to the adoption of SFAS 146. The effect on adoption of SFAS 146 will change on a prospective basis the
timing of when restructuring charges are recorded from a commitment date approach to when the liability is incurred. Wind River is currently
assessing the impact, if any, of SFAS 146 on its financial statements.

Note 13: Subsequent Events

        In November 2002, Wind River's Board of Directors authorized management to exercise the purchase option under each of the operating
leases for the buildings at its Alameda headquarters. See Note 10, "Commitments and Contingencies," for further information about the
operating leases. Management expects Wind River may exercise the purchase option during the quarter ending January 31, 2003 or the quarter
ending April 30, 2003. Upon its anticipated exercise of the purchase option, Wind River will either acquire the buildings or arrange for them to
be acquired. In the event that Wind River exercises the purchase option and acquires the buildings, the purchase price of the buildings will
amount to $57.4 million, and the purchase price will be reflected as an asset on its balance sheet. Additionally, Wind River's restricted cash will
be reduced by the amount of the purchase price. Currently, Wind River reflects lease payments as a rental expense in its statement of operations.
In the event Wind River exercises the purchase option and acquires the buildings, Wind River's lease expense for the buildings will cease and
Wind River will subsequently record depreciation expense for the buildings over their estimated useful lives. If there is a substantial decline in
value of the buildings prior to the consummation of the purchase option, Wind River might be required to record a charge, which, depending on
its magnitude, could have a material adverse affect on Wind River's financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

        In November 2002, Wind River terminated the interest rate swap agreements that it had entered into in March 1998 and January 2001. See
Note 5, "Derivative Financial Instruments," for more information on these interest rate swap agreements. As a result, during the quarter ending
January 31, 2003, Wind River will record a cash-charge of $3.9 million relating to the liability for such interest rate swap agreement and will
reduce restricted cash by $3.4 million, the amount previously held in restricted cash as collateral for the interest rate swap agreements.

        In November 2002, Wind River announced a further restructuring plan that is intended to reduce its cost structure by approximately
$12.0 million to $15.0 million per quarter effective for the first quarter of fiscal 2004. The restructuring plan is expected to include a
reduction-in-force of approximately 400 to 500 full-time equivalent positions, as well as the implementation of other cost control measures such
as facilities closures. Wind River expects to realize most of the impact of these reductions in the first quarter of fiscal 2004, which ends on
April 30, 2003. Wind River is currently determining the extent of the cash charge associated with this restructuring. As a result of SFAS 146,
which is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, the accounting treatment that applies will depend upon the
date when the final determination of restructuring activities is made.

        As a result of the restructuring plan announced in November 2002, Wind River's management has commenced an impairment review and
will record a charge, if necessary, based on the outcome of the review.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward Looking Statements

        The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements include the statements under
"�Overview" regarding our expectations for our new business model generally, and for the enterprise license model in particular, the expected
impact on our revenues of the transition to the enterprise license model and the anticipated rate of adoption by customers of the enterprise
license model; the statements under "�Overview" regarding our expectations for the restructuring plan announced in November 2002; the
sentence in the second paragraph under "�Revenues" regarding open source or in-house software; the sentence in the sixth paragraph under
"�Revenues" regarding expectations for international sales; the sentences in the last paragraph under "�Revenues" regarding our expectations for
revenue levels in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003; the sentences in the second and third paragraphs under "Cost of Revenues" regarding factors
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that may affect product related costs of revenues in the future and our expectations regarding cost of service revenues in absolute dollars and as a
percentage of revenue; the sentences in the first, third and fourth paragraphs under "�Operating Expenses" regarding our expectations about
selling and marketing expenses, product development and engineering expenses, and general and administrative expenses, respectively; the
statements under "�Restructuring and Other Nonrecurring Costs" regarding our expectations as to when the impact of the restructuring efforts will
be realized; the statement under "�Consolidation of Excess Facilities" regarding the subleasing of facilities; the statements under "Liquidity and
Capital Resources�Commitments" about our expectations regarding the exercise of the purchase option under our synthetic leases and the impact
thereof; and the sentences in the last paragraph of "Liquidity and Capital Resources" regarding our beliefs about future liquidity and capital
requirements.

        These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that may
cause our results, levels of activity, performance or achievements, or those of our industry to be materially different from those expressed or
implied by the forward-looking statements. The cautionary statements set forth below and in "Additional Risk Factors that May Affect Future
Results of Operations" identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in any such forward-looking
statements. Additionally, see our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002 for further discussion of these factors.
We do not intend to update any of the forward-looking statements contained in this report to reflect any future events or developments unless
required by law. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated financial statements and notes
included elsewhere in this report.

Overview

        Wind River is a leading supplier of software solutions and development tools for embedded systems. An embedded system consists of a
microprocessor, or a series of microprocessors, and related software and is used to control, monitor or assist the operation of electronic devices,
equipment and machinery. Embedded systems are used in diverse products such as cellular phones, digital imaging products, auto braking
systems, internet routers, jet fighter control panels and factory automation devices. Our products, including our flagship products, the Tornado®
development platform and the VxWorks® real-time operating system, help customers to enhance product performance, standardize designs
across projects, reduce research and development costs and shorten product development cycles. We sell our products to customers in a variety
of markets, including aerospace and defense, automotive, digital consumer, industrial measurement and networking.
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        In November 2002, we introduced our Enterprise Platform Initiative ("EPI"). Under EPI, we will bundle our software technology into
market specific platforms and license these platforms using an enterprise license model, which is referred to as ELM. These market specific
platforms will include a combination of development tools, an operating system and various protocols and interfaces. Under ELM we will
license these market specific platforms under an annual subscription-based license that combines development and production licenses, while
eliminating our traditional "project" and "site" restrictions. We anticipate that most ELM licenses will (i) have an initial duration of one year,
with annual renewals, (ii) include payment terms for the annual subscription within 30-60 days after entering into the ELM license agreement
and (iii) include a number of services credits for field engineering support to provide for customer installation and start-up.

        We believe that ELM will allow us to:

�
deliver more key technology integrated into a market specific platform with less restrictive terms that more closely match
our customers' needs;

�
expand opportunities with our strategic and major customers by offering a simpler and more cost-effective method of
accessing our technology and services; and

�
better manage our business model within our major and strategic customer base and have better visibility into our earnings
stream.

Initially, ELM will be focused on our strategic and major customers who are positioned to take advantage of enterprise-wide subscription
licensing. We will initially offer our customers the option of licensing our platform products under ELM or continuing to license our software
products and services in our traditional "project-based" license model.
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        In the transition of our business model from project-based licensing to ELM, we expect the timing of our reported revenue to be impacted
because under ELM revenue is recognized ratably over the subscription period. Under an ELM license, a small amount of revenue is recognized
during the quarter in which the market specific platform products are purchased. The licensing revenue that is not recognized in the quarter in
which the license is purchased is recorded as deferred revenue and recognized ratably over the remaining term of the subscription period. By
contrast, our traditional project-based license requires a majority of license revenue to be recognized in the quarter in which the products are
purchased with a much smaller amount being deferred and recognized subsequently over the maintenance period. Therefore, an order for an
ELM license will result in lower current-quarter revenue than an equal-sized order for a project-based license. We anticipate that approximately
10% of our new product licenses during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 will transition to the ELM. To the extent that the adoption rate is
higher, we would expect a greater decline in near-term revenue, as well as an even higher increase to deferred revenue. Once subscription
revenues become a significant part of our revenue stream, these revenues and the related costs of such revenues will be reported as separate line
items on the face of the statement of operations.

        Due to a combination of our transition to ELM and other factors adversely affecting the technology sector, we believe that our reported
revenue could decline in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, as compared to both the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 and the third quarter of fiscal
2003. See "�Results of Operations�Revenues" for further information on our revenue expectations. See also, "Factors That May Affect Future
Operating Results�We have recently adopted a new business model..." for a discussion of risks associated with the adoption of ELM.

        In November 2002, we announced a further restructuring plan that is intended to reduce our cost structure by approximately $12.0 million
to $15.0 million per quarter effective for the first quarter of fiscal 2004. The restructuring plan is expected to include a reduction-in-force of
approximately 400 to 500 full-time equivalent positions, as well as the implementation of other cost control measures such as facilities closures.
We expect to realize most of the impact of these reductions in the first quarter of
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fiscal 2004, which ends on April 30, 2003. We are currently determining the extent of the cash charge associated with this restructuring. As a
result of SFAS 146, which is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, the accounting treatment that applies will
depend upon the date when the final determination of restructuring activities is made.

        As a result of the restructuring plan announced in November 2002, we have commenced an impairment review and will record a charge, if
necessary, based on the outcome of the review.

        For a discussion of our critical accounting policies, please refer to "Critical Accounting Policies," in Item 7, "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002,
which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30, 2002.

Results of Operations

        Beginning in fiscal 2002, we were significantly impacted by the economic downturn, which has been especially pronounced in the
high-technology sector generally and the telecommunications sector in particular. The downturn, as well as its adverse impact on our revenues
and earnings, continued through the third quarter of fiscal 2003. Our revenues were $58.3 million and $80.1 million for the three months ended
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $188.2 million and $270.6 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Net loss was $14.3 million, or $0.18 net loss per share, for the quarter ended October 31, 2002 compared to a net loss of
$19.2 million, or $0.25 net loss per share, for the quarter ended October 31, 2001. Net loss was $69.3 million, or $0.88 net loss per share, for the
nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to a net loss of $325.6 million, or $4.21 net loss per share, for the nine months ended October 31,
2001. On February 1, 2002, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets"
("SFAS 142") and, accordingly, we did not amortize any goodwill in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002. If we had not amortized
goodwill in the three and nine month periods ended October 31, 2001, net loss would have been $7.9 million, or $0.10 net loss per share, for the
three months ended October 31, 2001, and $263.4 million, or $3.41 net loss per share for the nine months ended October 31, 2001.

19

        The following table sets forth certain consolidated statement of operations data as a percentage of revenues for the periods indicated:
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Three Months
Ended

October 31,

Nine Months
Ended

October 31,

2002 2001 2002 2001

Revenues, net:
Products 64% 66% 66% 67%
Services 36 34 34 33

Total revenues 100 100 100 100

Cost of revenues:
Products 7 8 8 7
Services 21 17 21 18

Total cost of revenues 28 25 29 25

Gross profit 72 75 71 75

Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 47 44 50 44
Product development and engineering 31 27 30 25
General and administrative 15 11 14 11
Amortization of goodwill and purchased intangibles 4 17 4 26
Impairment of goodwill and purchased intangibles � � � 83
Restructuring and other nonrecurring charges � � 9 10

Total operating expenses 97 99 107 199

Loss from operations (25) (24) (36) (124)
Other income (expense):

Interest income 5 5 5 5
Interest expense (3) (2) (3) (2)
Other expense, net (1) (6) (3) (2)

Total other income (expense) 1 (3) (1) 1
Loss before provision for (benefit from) income taxes and extraordinary gain (24) (27) (37) (123)
Provision for (benefit from) for income taxes � (2) � (3)

Loss before extraordinary gain (24) (25) (37) (120)
Extraordinary gain, net of income taxes � 1 � �

Net loss (24)% (24)% (37)% (120)%

Revenues

        Revenues consist of product revenues and service revenues, net of reserves and other allowances. Product revenues consist of royalties and
fees for operating systems, hardware, licenses, and fees for the use of development tools. Service revenues are derived from fees from
professional services, which include design and development fees, software maintenance contracts, and customer training and consulting. We
accrue for sales returns and other allowances based on historical experience. Total revenues decreased 27% to $58.3 million for the three months
ended October 31, 2002 compared to $80.1 million for the three months ended October 31, 2001. Total revenues decreased 30% to
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$188.2 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to $270.6 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2001. The
decreases in total revenues for the three and nine months ended
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October 31, 2002, were primarily due to the continuing economic downturn in the high-technology sector. This downturn has affected us both
directly, through a decline in direct sales, and indirectly, because our products are incorporated into our customers' products, and as our
customers' sales decline, our royalty revenue declines as well.

        Our product revenues, excluding run-time royalties, decreased 34% to $23.3 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 compared
to $35.5 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001. Run-time royalties decreased 20% to $14.0 million in the three months ended
October 31, 2002, compared to $17.5 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001. Our product revenues, excluding run-time royalties,
decreased 39% to $75.0 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to $123.4 million in the nine months ended October 31,
2001. Run-time royalties declined 16% to $48.3 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002, compared to $57.8 million in the nine
months ended October 31, 2001. Product revenues accounted for approximately 64% and 66% of total revenues in the three months ended
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 66% and 67% in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The general
decline in product revenues was primarily due to lower customer demand for hardware and software products, including run-time royalties,
which are generally tied to the number of customer products deployed. During fiscal 2002 and continuing in fiscal 2003, some of our customers
deferred or canceled projects, in whole or in part, and experienced budgeting constraints causing a reduction in their purchases of our products.
Also, we cannot anticipate or calculate the potential adverse impact of open source or in-house software on our revenues particularly where our
customer's budget constraints may make such software, which is royalty-free, more appealing than Wind River products for their initial project
development.

        Service revenues decreased 23% to $21.0 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002, compared to $27.1 million in the three
months ended October 31, 2001, and decreased 27% to $64.9 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to $89.3 million in
the nine months ended October 31, 2001. The decrease in the three and nine months periods ended October 31, 2002 compared to the same
periods ended October 31, 2002 was primarily due to lower customer demand for maintenance, consulting and training services as a result of the
continuing economic downturn in the high-technology sector. Maintenance revenues decreased 17% to $12.6 million in the three months ended
October 31, 2002, compared to $15.3 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001, and decreased 24% to $38.2 million in the nine
months ended October 31, 2002, compared to $50.1 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2001. Other service revenues, which includes
training, engineering and professional services, declined 30% to $8.3 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 from $11.8 million in
the three months ended October 31, 2001 and declined 32% to $26.7 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 from $39.2 million in
the nine months ended October 31, 2001. Service revenues accounted for approximately 36% and 34% of total revenues in the three months
ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and approximately 34% and 33% of total revenues in the nine months ended October 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

        Revenues from international sales decreased by 25% to $23.6 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 compared to
$31.6 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001, and decreased 25% to $78.1 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002
compared to $103.7 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2001. The overall decrease during the three months ended October 31, 2002
compared to the three months ended October 31, 2001 was due to an 11% decline in revenues from Japan, a 30% decrease in revenues from
Europe and a 31% decline in revenues from Asia Pacific. The overall decrease during the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to the
nine months ended October 31, 2001 was due to a 24% decline in revenues from Japan, a 27% decline in revenues from Europe and an 18%
decline in revenues from Asia Pacific.

        Revenues from Japan were $7.3 million and $8.2 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and
$20.2 million and $26.6 million in the nine months ended October 31,
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2002 and 2001, respectively. Revenues from Europe were $12.2 million and $17.4 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively, and $42.5 million and $58.2 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Revenues from Asia
Pacific were $4.1 million and $5.9 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $15.5 million and
$18.9 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The declines in Japan, Europe and Asia Pacific were primarily
the result of local economic slowdowns, which caused lower demand for our products and services. Additionally, many of our customers are
large multinational corporations that have reduced capital spending across all geographic regions. Overall, however, international sales were not
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as adversely affected by the decrease in customer spending as were sales in North America in both the three and nine months ended October 31,
2002 compared to the same periods in 2001. As a result, international revenues accounted for 40% and 42% of total revenues for the three
months and nine months ended October 31, 2002, compared to 39% and 38% in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001. We expect
international sales to continue to represent a significant portion of revenues, although the actual percentage may fluctuate from period to period.
Our international sales are mostly denominated in local currencies.

        As a result of our adoption of EPI and the ELM model, as well as due to continuing softness in the high technology sector, we believe that
our revenue could decline during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, which ends January 31, 2003, compared to both the quarter ended October 31,
2002 and the quarter ended January 31, 2002. We cannot predict how long or severe the current economic downturn will be. As a result of this
uncertainty, forecasting and financial and strategic planning are more difficult than usual. If the downturn continues for an extended period or
becomes more severe, our business will suffer and we may experience additional declines in sales, as well as continued losses, as our customers
curtail their spending. In addition, the rate of adoption by our customers to the ELM model will affect our revenues. While we believe the new
ELM licensing model will be beneficial to Wind River over time, there can be no assurance that our customers will adopt our new ELM model
or that the program will be successful. Additionally, although we expect many of our strategic and major customers to adopt ELM for their
current needs, they may also transition existing perpetual development seats to ELM terms. For further discussion about factors affecting our
revenues see "�Factors That May Affect Future Results."

Costs of Revenues

        The overall cost of products and services as a percentage of total revenues was 28% and 25% for the three months ended October 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively, and 29% and 25% in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

        Cost of products was $4.0 million and $6.1 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, reflecting a
decrease of 34%. Cost of products was $14.2 million and $19.9 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
reflecting a decrease of 29%. Product-related cost of revenues as a percentage of product revenues was 11% and 12% in the three months ended
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 12% and 11% in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Product-related
costs consist primarily of salaries and benefits for production employees, product media, amortization of capitalized software development costs,
royalty expense related to the use of third parties' software in our products, documentation and packaging. The declines in product-related costs
in absolute dollars in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 and as a percentage of product revenue for the three months ended
October 31, 2002 as compared to the comparable periods in 2001 were partially due to lower product costs associated with lower hardware
revenues and savings achieved as a result of our restructuring plan at our manufacturing facilities. Additionally, lower amortization expense
relating to capitalized software development costs and lower third-party royalty costs contributed to the decline in product-related costs.
Amortization of capitalized software development costs included in cost of products amounted to
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$264,000 and $359,000 for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $681,000 and $1,108,000 for the nine months
ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Third-party royalty costs included in cost of products amounted to $1.2 million and $2.6 million
for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $4.4 million and $7.7 million for the nine months ended October 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Product-related costs as a percentage of product revenues in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to
the nine months ended October 31, 2001 were essentially flat. Product-related cost of revenues may be affected in the future by the amortization
of capitalized software development costs, costs of distribution related to the introduction of new products and by royalty costs for use of
third-party software in our products.

        Cost of services was $12.5 million and $13.8 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, reflecting a
decrease of 10%. Cost of services was $39.5 million and $47.2 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
reflecting a decrease of 16%. Service-related cost of revenues as a percentage of service revenues was 60% and 51% in the three months ended
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 61% and 53% in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Service-related
cost of revenues consist primarily of personnel-related costs associated with providing services, including consulting services, to customers and
the infrastructure to manage a services organization, as well as costs to recruit, develop, and retain services professionals. The decrease in
absolute dollars of service costs in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to the three and nine months ended October 31,
2001 was primarily due to our reduced use of outside consultants and a reduction of full-time employees as part of the restructuring plans we
implemented in May 2001 and May 2002. Due to the restructuring programs and lower services costs associated with lower services revenues,
we realized cost reductions of $581,000 in professional services costs, $302,000 in maintenance costs and $257,000 in training costs in the three
months ended October 31, 2002 compared to the three months ended October 31, 2001. We realized cost reductions of $3.4 million in
professional services costs, $1.9 million in maintenance costs and $1.6 million in training costs for the nine months ended October 31, 2002
compared to the nine months ended October 31, 2001. The increase in service-related costs as a percentage of service revenues in the three and
nine months ended October 31, 2002 was due to a faster decline in the service revenues base than the decline in fixed costs associated with
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customer support, personnel and certified third-party contractors within our professional services organization. We expect that the cost of service
revenues will decline in the near term as we continue to restructure our business during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. Additionally, we expect
cost of services to fluctuate as a percentage of service revenue based on progress of various consulting and professional service projects.
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Operating Expenses

        Selling and Marketing.    Selling and marketing expenses decreased 22% to $27.4 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 from
$35.1 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001, and decreased 21% to $94.0 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 from
$118.3 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2001. As a percentage of total revenues, selling and marketing expenses were 47% and
44% in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 50% and 44% in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. The decrease in absolute dollars of selling and marketing expenses in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002
compared to the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001 was in part attributable to lower sales commission expenses as a result of
decreased sales volume, and decreased expenditures in various areas, primarily payroll expense, and travel, relating to the restructuring programs
we implemented in May 2001 and May 2002. Due to the residual impact from the May 2001 restructuring measures, the additional restructuring
measures taken in May 2002, and the general decline in sales, we realized cost reductions of approximately $615,000 and $4.5 million in sales
commissions, $2.7 million and $7.8 million in payroll-related costs, and $400,000 and $1.5 million in travel-related costs for the three and nine
months ended October 31, 2002, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001, respectively. We also realized
savings in bad debt expense of $3.0 million and $2.9 million in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002, respectively, as compared to
the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001, respectively. The increase in selling and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenues was
due to an overall lower revenue base and expenses declining at a slower rate than the decline in revenues. We believe selling and marketing
expenses in absolute dollars will remain flat or even decline in the near term as we continue to restructure our business during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2003.

        Product Development and Engineering.    Product development and engineering expenses decreased 17% to $18.0 million in the three
months ended October 31, 2002 from $21.6 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001, and decreased 18% to $56.5 million in the nine
months ended October 31, 2002 from $68.7 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2001. As a percentage of total revenues, product
development and engineering expenses were 31% and 27% in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 30% and
25% in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in product development and engineering expenses in
absolute dollars in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to the same periods ended October 31, 2001 was primarily due
to our implementation of cost-control measures related to the restructuring plans we implemented in May 2001 and May 2002. Due to the
residual impact from the May 2001 restructuring measures and the additional restructuring measures taken in May 2002, we realized cost
reductions of approximately $2.1 million and $6.6 million in payroll-related costs, together with smaller saving achieved in various other areas,
for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001,
respectively. The increase in costs as a percentage of revenues in the three and nine month periods ended October 31, 2002 compared to the
same periods ended October 31, 2001 was primarily due to an overall lower revenue base and expenses declining at a slower rate than the
decline in revenues.

        We received $581,000 and $810,000 for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $3.8 million and $2.8 million
for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, of funded research and development related primarily to our Center of
Excellence initiative and other joint development efforts, which offset a portion of our gross research and development expenses in the
respective periods. Furthermore, we capitalized costs of $0 and $969,000 for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002, respectively,
and $801,000 for both the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001, respectively, associated with the engineering development costs
incurred after the establishment of technological feasibility of the software. We believe that
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product development and engineering expenses in absolute dollars will decrease in the short term as a result of the restructuring plan announced
in November 2002.

        General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses decreased 1% to $8.7 million in the three months ended October 31,
2002 from $8.8 million in the three months ended October 31, 2001, and decreased 8% to $26.4 million in the nine months ended October 31,
2002 from $28.6 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2001. As a percentage of total revenues, general and administrative expenses
were 15% and 11% in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and 14% and 11% in the nine months ended October 31,
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2002 and 2001. The slight decline in general and administrative expenses in absolute dollars was the result of an overall decline in expenses due
to our implementation of cost-control measures related to the restructuring plans we implemented in May 2001 and May 2002. Due to the
residual impact from the May 2001 restructuring measures and the additional restructuring measures taken in May 2002, we realized cost
reductions in the areas of payroll-related costs of approximately $292,000, together with savings achieved in other areas, offset by an increase in
legal and accounting costs of $593,000 for the three months ended October 31, 2002, as compared to the same period last year. For the nine
months ended October 31, 2002 as compared to the same period last year, we realized cost savings of $2.2 million in payroll-related costs and
$821,000 in consulting costs, as well as smaller savings achieved in other areas. These savings were offset by an increase in legal and accounting
costs of $2.0 million partially associated with certain litigation matters incurred during the fiscal year 2003. The increase in general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to the same periods
ended October 31, 2001 was primarily the result of expenses declining at a slower rate than the decline in revenue. We believe that general and
administrative expenses will be flat or even decrease in absolute dollars in the short term as a result of the restructuring plan announced in
November 2002.

        We allocate the total costs for information technology, facilities and fixed asset depreciation to each of the functional areas based on certain
headcount data. Fixed asset depreciation allocated costs include straight-line depreciation expense on buildings, leasehold improvements,
computer equipment, software, furniture and office equipment. Information technology allocated costs include salaries, information technology,
project costs, communication costs and their allocated share of depreciation expense for fixed assets. Facilities allocated costs include facility
rent for the corporate offices as well as shared function offices, property taxes, their allocated share of depreciation expenses for office furniture
and other department operating costs.

        Amortization of Goodwill and Purchased Intangibles.    Amortization of goodwill and purchased intangibles totaled $2.3 million and
$13.6 million in the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $6.8 million and $69.4 million in the nine months ended
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The significant decrease in both the three and nine month periods ended October 31, 2002 compared to
the same periods in the prior year is primarily due to our adoption of SFAS 142 effective February 1, 2002, as a result of which we did not
amortize any goodwill in the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002. In the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001, we recorded
amortization of goodwill of $10.4 million and $59.9 million, respectively, and amortized $945,000 and $2.3 million, respectively, of acquired
workforce previously classified as purchased intangible assets, under the accounting rules applicable during those periods.

        Impairment of Goodwill and Purchased Intangibles.    During the quarter ended July 31, 2001, we identified indicators of possible
impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets relating to previous acquisitions. These indicators included the deterioration in the
business climate, recent changes in sales and cash flow forecasts, revised strategic plans for certain of the acquired businesses and significant
declines in the market values of companies in the general technology industry. Accordingly, we compared the undiscounted cash flows
associated with the acquired goodwill and
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purchased intangible assets with the respective carrying amounts and determined that an impairment of certain of these assets existed. As a
result, during the quarter ended July 31, 2001, we recorded an aggregate charge of $225.4 million, of which $223.6 million related to the
impairment of goodwill and $1.8 million related to the impairment of purchased intangible assets. The impaired amount was measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeded the present value of the estimated future cash flows for goodwill and purchased intangible
assets, as follows:

Acquired Company
Amount Impaired

(In thousands)

Embedded Support Tools Corporation $ 167,482
AudeSi Technologies Inc. 27,893
IceSoft AS 15,255
Software Development Systems, Inc 14,788

$ 225,418

        The impairment charge for those assets held for use was determined based upon the estimated discounted cash flows over the remaining
useful life of the goodwill using discount rates ranging from 17% to 23%. The assumptions supporting the cash flows, including the discount
rates, were determined using our best estimates as of the date of the impairment review. The impairment charge for those assets held for disposal
was determined based on the expected proceeds of disposition. As of October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002, we had net book values in
goodwill and purchased intangible assets of approximately $102.4 million and $108.4 million, respectively. Accumulated amortization for

Edgar Filing: WIND RIVER SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

24



goodwill and purchased intangibles was $190.8 million and $183.4 million, respectively, as of October 31, 2002 and January 31, 2002,
respectively. Amortization expense relating to completed technology for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001 was $1.7 million
and $1.9 million, respectively, and for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001 was $5.1 million and $6.3 million, respectively. Other
than goodwill, all identifiable intangible assets of approximately $17.0 million in net book value as of October 31, 2002 will continue to be
amortized in accordance with SFAS 142.

        Restructuring and Other Nonrecurring Costs.    Restructuring and other nonrecurring costs consists of costs associated with restructuring
programs implemented by Wind River and costs associated with the settlement of litigation and related remediation efforts.

Restructuring Costs.

        In May 2001, we announced initial cost control measures that included a reduction of our worldwide work force, organizational
restructuring and certain measures aimed at controlling operational expenses. In May 2002, we announced additional cost control measures that
included further reduction of our worldwide work force and measures focused on further reducing operational expenses. In both the May 2001
and May 2002 restructuring programs, we made permanent and temporary adjustments to the business operations in order to optimize operating
efficiency.

        As a result of the decisions to restructure our business, we recorded restructuring costs of $13.9 million and $28.6 million in the quarters
ended July 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in each case classified as operating expenses. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, we recorded a
reversal of $6.9 million such that the net restructuring charge for fiscal year 2002 was $21.7 million.

        As of January 31, 2002, the remaining restructuring liabilities related to the May 2001 restructuring program totaled $5.2 million. The
following table provides detailed restructuring liabilities at the end of the fiscal year 2002; total charges recorded, cash payments made and
non-cash write-offs for the nine

26

months ended October 31, 2002; and the aggregate remaining restructuring liabilities for both the May 2001 and the May 2002 restructuring
programs as of October 31, 2002:

For the Nine Months Ended October 31, 2002

(In thousands)

Restructuring
Liabilities as of
Jan. 31, 2002

Cash
Charges

Non-Cash
Charges

Total
Charges

Cash
Payments

Non-Cash
Write-Offs

Restructuring
Liabilities as of
Oct. 31, 2002

Work force reduction $ 4,294 $ 10,429 $ �$ 10,429 $ (13,289) $ (202) $ 1,232
Consolidation of excess facilities 949 1,607 355 1,962 (913) (347) 1,651
Other � 356 1,190 1,546 (263) (1,183) 100

Total $ 5,243 $ 12,392 $ 1,545 $ 13,937 $ (14,465) $ (1,732) $ 2,983

        The following paragraphs provide detailed information relating to the restructuring costs that were recorded during the quarters ended
July 31, 2002 and 2001.

        Worldwide Work Force Reduction.    The May 2002 and 2001 restructuring programs resulted in the reduction of 219 and 425 employees,
respectively, across all business functions, operating units and geographic regions. The worldwide work force reductions implemented as part of
the May 2001 restructuring were substantially completed as of July 31, 2002. The May 2002 worldwide work force reduction started in the
quarter ended July 31, 2002, and will be substantially completed as of October 31, 2002. In addition, the number of contractors and temporary
workers employed by us was reduced as a result of both restructuring programs.

        We recorded a work force reduction charge of approximately $10.4 million and $20.1 million during the quarters ended July 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively, relating primarily to severance payments and the continuation of benefits. During the quarter ended July 31, 2001, equipment
disposed of or removed from operations as a result of the work force reduction resulted in a charge of $765,000 and consisted primarily of
computer equipment.
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        Consolidation of Excess Facilities.    We recorded a restructuring charge of $2.0 million and $8.4 million during the quarters ended July 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, relating to the consolidation of certain excess facilities primarily in the United States, Japan and the United
Kingdom. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, we recorded a reversal of $6.9 million against the $8.4 million charge after we determined that it
would be more efficient and cost-effective if certain of these excess facilities continued to be used by Wind River personnel. The consolidation
of excess facilities includes the closure of certain leased corporate facilities and sales offices that related to business activities that were
restructured. The estimated excess facility costs represent the remaining lease payments and estimated costs less estimated proceeds from
sub-leasing certain facilities. The estimated proceeds from sub-leasing these facilities are based on current comparable rates for leases in the
respective markets. If facilities operating lease rental rates continue to decrease in these markets or it takes longer than expected to find a
suitable tenant to sublease these facilities, the actual loss could exceed this estimate. Cash and non-cash charges relate primarily to lease
terminations, non-cancelable lease costs and impairment of leasehold improvements related to the excess facilities. Amounts accrued related to
the net lease expense due to the consolidation of excess facilities consolidated as a result of the May 2002 and May 2001 restructuring programs
will be paid through fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, unless we successfully negotiate to exit the leases at an earlier date. See "�Overview"
above for a discussion about our announcement in November 2002 of another restructuring program.

        Other Items.    During the quarter ended July 31, 2002, we recorded a restructuring charge of $1.5 million relating to other items, primarily
consisting of the write-offs of capitalized software and inventory relating to products that management decided to discontinue during the quarter.
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Litigation-related costs.

        During the nine months ended October 31, 2002, we recorded a charge of $3.7 million relating to the settlement of litigation with a third
party and related remediation efforts.

Other Income (Expense)

        Interest income was $2.9 million and $3.4 million for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $9.5 million
and $12.7 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in interest income in both the three and nine
month periods was primarily due to lower interest earned on our investments as a result of lower interest rates and higher amortization expense
related to our fixed-income securities. Cash and cash equivalents, investments and restricted cash totaled $296.3 million and $247.3 million as of
October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

        Interest expense was $1.7 million and $1.5 million for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $5.3 million
and $5.7 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Interest expense increased in the three-month period ended
October 31, 2002 compared to the three-month period ended October 31, 2001 because the principal amount of convertible notes outstanding on
which interest was paid was higher in the 2002 period compared to the 2001 period. The decrease in interest expense in nine-month period was
due to overall lower interest incurred on our outstanding convertible notes as a result of the redemption or repurchase of our 5% convertible
notes and the issuance of 3.75% convertible notes in December 2001. We pay interest on our outstanding 3.75% convertible subordinated notes
semi-annually and record the amortization of certain issuance costs associated with these notes as interest expense.

        Other expense, net, was $815,000 and $4.6 million for the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $6.0 million
and $5.5 million for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in other expense for the three-month period
was primarily due to lower investment write-downs from our investment portfolios during the quarter. We wrote-down certain public and private
investments of approximately $208,000 and $7.9 million during the three months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and
$4.5 million and $11.2 million during the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, partially offset by a $1.4 million gain
relating to the sale of publicly held securities during the three and nine month periods ended October 31, 2001. We recorded a loss on asset
dispositions of $200,000 for the three months ended October 31, 2002, related to the write-off of an escrow receivable from an acquisition
deemed uncollectible.

Extraordinary Gain

        During the nine months ended October 31, 2001, we recognized a gain of $568,000 relating to the repurchase of our subordinated
convertible notes.

Provision For (Benefit from) Income Taxes
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        For the three months ended October 31, 2002, we did not record a provision for or benefit from income taxes. Despite the occurrence of net
losses in the nine months ended October 31, 2002, we had a tax provision of $775,000, primarily due to tax liabilities arising in certain foreign
operations during such period. We had a tax benefit of $1.8 million and $7.8 million, for the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001,
respectively.

        During fiscal 2002, we recorded a full valuation allowance against deferred tax assets based on management's determination that it is more
likely than not that our deferred tax assets at January 31, 2002 will not be realized. As of October 31, 2002, approximately $22.0 million of the
gross deferred tax assets are related to certain U.S. operating loss carry-forwards resulting from the exercise of employee
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stock options. When recognized, the tax benefit related to these assets will be accounted for as a credit to additional paid-in-capital rather than a
reduction of the income tax provision.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

        As of October 31, 2002, we had working capital of approximately $50.2 million, and cash, cash equivalents and investments of
approximately $232.6 million, which includes $45.5 million of cash and cash equivalents, $29.6 million of short-term investments and
$157.6 million of investments with maturities of greater than one year but excludes restricted cash of $63.7 million associated with our synthetic
leases and related interest rate swap agreements. We invest primarily in highly liquid, investment-grade instruments. We have substantial debt
service, principal repayment and lease payment obligations, which could affect our liquidity, cash reserves and ability to obtain additional
financing if we need to do so.

        Operating activities primarily include the net loss for the periods under consideration, non-cash charges such as depreciation and
amortization expense and changes in assets and liabilities. In the nine months ended October 31, 2002, our operating activities used net cash of
$27.0 million compared to net cash provided by operating activities of $19.0 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2001. Net cash used
in operating activities for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 consisted of cash used by operations of $38.6 million offset by an increase in
cash of $11.6 million arising from changes in assets and liabilities, primarily accounts receivable. Accounts receivable decreased by
$18.9 million due primarily to the lower sales volume and to an increased rate of collections. Net cash provided by operating activities in the
nine months ended October 31, 2001 consisted of cash used in operations of $6.8 million offset by an increase in cash of $25.8 million arising
from changes in assets and liabilities, primarily accounts receivable. Cash from operations includes net loss of $69.3 million and $325.6 million
offset primarily by depreciation and amortization of $22.4 million and $83.7 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, and a non-cash impairment charge of $225.4 million relating to the write-down of goodwill and purchased intangibles in the nine
months ended October 31, 2001. Our operating cash flows depend heavily on the level of our sales, which in turn depend, to a large extent on
general economic conditions affecting us and our customers, as well as the timing of new product introductions and other competitive factors
and our ability to control expenses successfully.

        Our investing activities used net cash of $46.5 million and provided net cash of $22.4 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. Investing activities generally relate to the purchase of investments, business acquisitions and equipment purchases,
partially offset by cash provided from the sale and maturity of investments. Purchases of investments totaled $204.5 million and $217.2 million
in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Additionally, purchases of capital equipment totaled $4.9 million and
$14.2 million, in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Furthermore, during the nine months ended October 31, 2002
and 2001, we used $175,000 and $43.4 million, respectively, for acquisition related activities. Cash provided by the sale of investments was
$116.1 million and $223.0 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and cash provided by maturities of
investments was $48.1 million and $77.0 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

        Our financing activities used net cash of $13.3 million and $60.4 million in the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001. During the
nine months ended October 31, 2002, the primary source of cash from financing activities was $6.3 million received from the issuance of
common stock from employee stock option exercises and employee stock purchase plan activity, offset by $4.7 million used for the repurchase
of common stock and $15.0 million in repayment of a line of credit at our Japanese subsidiary. During the nine months ended October 31, 2001,
we received cash of $12.2 million from the
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issuance of common stock from stock option exercises and employee stock purchase plan activity, and cash of $1.9 million from increase in a
line of credit at our Japanese subsidiary, which was offset by cash used of $74.5 million for the repurchase of our convertible subordinated notes.

Convertible Subordinated Notes

        In December 2001, we issued $150.0 million of 3.75% convertible subordinated notes due December 2006. The notes are unsecured,
subordinated to all existing and future senior debt and convertible into shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of $24.115 per
share. The notes mature on December 15, 2006, unless earlier redeemed or converted. Interest is payable in cash semi-annually in arrears on
June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing June 15, 2002. At the option of the holder, the notes may be converted into our common
stock at any time at the then-current conversion price. We may redeem all or a portion of the notes for cash at a redemption price of 100.75% of
the principal amount between December 15, 2004 and December 14, 2005, and 100.0% of the principal amount beginning December 15, 2005
and thereafter. Additionally, under specified circumstances we may redeem the notes prior to 2004.

        The indenture under which the notes were issued provides that an event of default will occur if (i) we fail to pay principal or premium on
the notes, (ii) we fail to pay interest on the notes and fail to cure such non-payment within 30 days, (iii) we fail to perform any other covenant
required of us in the indenture and the failure is not cured or waived within 60 days, or (iv) we or one of our significant subsidiaries fails to pay,
at final maturity or upon acceleration, any indebtedness for money borrowed in an outstanding principal amount in excess of $35.0 million,
including lease commitments, and the indebtedness is not discharged, or the default is not cured, waived or rescinded within 60 days after
written notice is provided in accordance with the terms of the indenture. If any of these events of default occurs, either the trustee or the holders
of at least 25% of the outstanding notes may declare the principal amount of the notes to be due and payable. In addition, an event of
bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization (involving us or any of our significant subsidiaries) will constitute an event of default under the
indenture and, in that case, the principal amount of the notes will automatically become due and payable.

Commitments

        In fiscal 1998 and fiscal 2000, we entered into two operating leases for our headquarters facility constructed on land owned by us in
Alameda, California. After consideration of various financing alternatives for the construction of our headquarters buildings on land owned by
us, the related economic impact of each alternative and the ability to retain control of the property, we chose a form of financing that we believe
offered beneficial economic terms, commonly referred to as a "synthetic lease." These leases are treated as operating leases for accounting
purposes and financing leases for tax purposes. A synthetic lease is a form of off-balance sheet financing under which an unrelated third party
funds 100% of the costs for the acquisition and/or construction of the property and leases the asset back to the company, as lessee. None of our
officers or employees has any financial interest in these synthetic lease arrangements.
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         The lessor has funded a total of $32.4 million of construction costs related to the first operating lease and $25.0 million of construction
costs related to the second operating lease. The operating lease payments vary based upon the total construction costs of the buildings, which
include capitalized interest at the LIBOR. In connection with the leases, we leased the land to the lessor of the buildings at a nominal rate and for
a term of 55 years. If we were to terminate the ground lease prior to maturity, we would be obligated to purchase the buildings for 100% of the
amount financed. The operating leases provide us with the option, at the end of their terms, to either acquire the buildings at the lessor's original
cost or arrange for the buildings to be acquired. Both leases have initial terms of seven years, but may be renewed under certain circumstances.
Unless renewed or earlier terminated, the first lease will terminate in September 2004 and the second lease will terminate in November 2006.
We have guaranteed the residual value associated with the buildings under the first operating lease and the second operating lease to the lessor of
a fixed amount of approximately 82% and 85%, respectively, of the lessor's actual funding of the two leases. If we do not purchase the buildings
upon maturity of the operating leases, we may be obligated to pay the amount of the residual value guarantee to the lessor.

        Under the terms of the operating leases, we must maintain compliance with financial covenants relating to a minimum consolidated fixed
charge ratio, minimum EBITDA, a minimum tangible net worth and minimum net unencumbered cash. As of October 31, 2002, we were in
compliance with all applicable covenants. There can be no assurance that we will continue to be in compliance with these covenants, particularly
if our revenues continue to be negatively impacted by the economy or other factors or if we are not able to control our costs adequately. Further,
in the event we were not in compliance with the covenants, there can be no assurance that we would be able to obtain a waiver or amendment of
the covenants, and if we could not, we might become obligated to purchase the buildings and could incur additional costs associated with
replacing the synthetic leases. In the event of a default, our obligation to purchase the leased properties for 100% of the amount financed by the
lessor could be accelerated.

        In November 2002, our Board of Directors authorized management to exercise the purchase option under each of the operating leases for
the buildings at its Alameda headquarters. Management expects Wind River may exercise the purchase option during the quarter ending

Edgar Filing: WIND RIVER SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

28



January 31, 2003 or the quarter ending April 30, 2003. Upon the anticipated exercise of the purchase option, we will either acquire the buildings
or arrange for them to be acquired. In the event that we exercise the purchase option and acquire the buildings, the purchase price of the
buildings will amount to $57.4 million, and the purchase price will be reflected as an asset on its balance sheet. Additionally, our restricted cash
will be reduced by the amount of the purchase price. Currently, we reflect lease payments as a rental expense in our statement of operations. In
the event we exercise the purchase option and acquire the buildings, our lease expense for the buildings will cease and we will subsequently
record depreciation expense for the buildings over their estimated useful lives. If there is a substantial decline in value of the buildings prior to
the consummation of the purchase option, we might be required to record a charge, which depending on its magnitude could have a material
adverse affect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

        In March 1998, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement to mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates on our first floating rate
operating lease. The interest rate swap agreement effectively changes our interest rate exposure on the operating lease, which is based on the
one-month LIBOR, to a fixed rate of 5.9%. As of October 31, 2002, the notional amount of the interest rate swap was $27.9 million. In
January 2001, we entered into a second interest rate swap agreement to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on our second floating rate
operating lease. This second interest rate swap agreement effectively changes our interest rate exposure on our second operating lease, which is
based on the one-month LIBOR, to a fixed rate of 5.6%. As of October 31, 2002, the notional amount of the interest rate swap was
$28.5 million. In November 2002, we terminated these interest
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rate swap agreements. As a result, during the quarter ending January 31, 2003, we will record a cash-charge of $3.9 million relating to the
liability for such interest rate swap agreement and will reduce restricted cash by $3.4 million, the amount previously held in restricted cash as
collateral for the interest rate swap agreements.

        As of October 31, 2002, our future financial commitments, including interest payments on our 3.75% convertible notes, are as set forth in
the table below:

Year Ended January 31,
Three Months

Ending
January 31, 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total

Synthetic lease payments(1) $ 287 $ 898 $ 730 $ 398 $ 331 $ �$ 2,644
Interest rate swap payments, net(2) 4,534 � � � � � 4,534

Synthetic lease payments, net 4,821 898 730 398 331 � 7,178
Interest payments on 3.75% subordinated
convertible notes 2,813 5,625 5,625 5,625 155,625 � 175,313
Other operating leases 3,098 9,387 6,931 3,496 1,837 11,888 36,637

Total $ 10,732 $ 15,910 $ 13,286 $ 9,519 $ 157,793 $ 11,888 $ 219,128

(1)
Does not reflect the exercise of the purchase option relating to operating leases discussed above.

(2)
Reflects termination of interest rate swap agreements that occurred in November 2002.

        The table does not reflect the exercise of the purchase option for the operating leases discussed above. In the event we exercised the
purchase option and acquired the buildings, we would not have any synthetic lease payments for future periods. The impact of the exercise of the
purchase option is discussed in greater detail above. The $150.0 million 3.75% convertible subordinated notes mature in December 2006, but
may be redeemed by us starting in 2004 or earlier if certain conditions are met. See "�Convertible Subordinated Notes" above. We had no
material planned capital commitments as of October 31, 2002.
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        Our capital requirements depend on numerous factors including selling and marketing expenses, product development and engineering
expenses, general and administrative expenses and working capital to support business growth. We anticipate that our operating and capital
expenditures will constitute a material use of our cash resources. As a result, our net cash flows will depend heavily on (i) the level of our future
sales (which depend, to a large extent, on general economic conditions affecting us and our customers, as well as the timing of new product
introductions and other competitive factors) and (ii) our ability to implement our restructuring plans and to control expenses. Although it is
difficult for us to predict future liquidity requirements with certainty, we believe that our current cash and cash equivalents will satisfy our cash
requirements for working capital, product development and capital expenditures for at least the next twelve months and on a longer term basis.
During or after this period, if cash generated by operations is insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requirements, we may need to sell additional
equity or debt securities or obtain an additional credit facility. Our ability to obtain additional financing may be limited by the amount of
indebtedness we have outstanding and/or our recent performance and financial condition, particularly if our bond rating is lowered or
withdrawn, as well as general market conditions if the current economic downturn were to continue or become more serious. There can be no
assurance that additional financing will be available to us or, if available, that such financing will be available on favorable terms. If we were
unable to obtain financing, we might be required to reduce our expenses, including product development and engineering expenses, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

        In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, "Accounting for
Exit or Disposal Activities" ("SFAS 146"). SFAS 146 addresses significant issues regarding the recognition, measurement, and reporting of
costs that are associated with exit and disposal activities, including restructuring activities that are currently accounted for under Emerging
Issues Task Force No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including
Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)" ("EITF 94-3"). The scope of SFAS 146 also includes costs related to terminating a contract that is not
a capital lease and termination benefits that employees who are involuntarily terminated receive under the terms of a one-time benefit
arrangement that is not an ongoing benefit arrangement or an individual deferred-compensation contract. SFAS 146 will be effective for exit or
disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002 and early application is encouraged. The provisions of EITF No. 94-3 shall continue
to apply for an exit activity initiated under an exit plan that met the criteria of EITF No. 94-3 prior to the adoption of SFAS 146. The effect on
adoption of SFAS 146 will change on a prospective basis the timing of when restructuring charges are recorded from a commitment date
approach to when the liability is incurred. We are currently assessing the impact, if any, of SFAS 146 on our financial statements.

Factors That May Affect Future Results

Our business faces significant risks. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do not yet know
of or that we currently think are immaterial may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or circumstances described in the
following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer, and the trading price of our common stock
could decline.

The economic downturn has adversely impacted and may continue to adversely impact our revenues and earnings. In addition,
uncertainties associated with the downturn increase the difficulty of financial planning and forecasting.

        We are currently in the midst of a general economic downturn that commenced in 2001 in the United States and has expanded to many
other regions of the world during 2002. The economic downturn has been especially pronounced in the high technology sector generally and the
telecommunications sector in particular. Beginning in the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002 and continuing through fiscal 2003, we have
experienced a decline in revenues and a loss of profitability, which we believe is attributable, at least in part, to these downturns, as many of our
customers experienced budgeting constraints, causing them to defer or cancel projects. Our revenues declined 27% and 30%, respectively, in the
three and nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001. Our total revenues decreased
20% in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001. Net loss was $14.3 million, or $0.18 net loss per share, for the quarter ended October 31, 2002
compared to a net loss of $19.2 million, or $0.25 net loss per share, for the quarter ended October 31, 2001. Net loss was $69.3 million, or $0.88
net loss per share, for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to a net loss of $325.6 million, or $4.21 net loss per share, for the nine
months ended October 31, 2001. Net loss was $375.6 million, or $4.84 net loss per share, for fiscal 2002 compared with a net loss of
$76.4 million, or $1.05 net loss per share, for fiscal 2001. Our decline in revenues during fiscal 2002 and the first three quarters of fiscal 2003, as
well as the continuing adverse economic conditions, led us to implement restructuring programs in both May 2001 and May 2002 that included a
headcount reduction and other cost-control measures, and to record charges for restructuring and impairment of acquired goodwill and other
intangible assets during fiscal year 2002. Additionally, continued decline in our revenues and net losses has caused us to announce another
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restructuring program in November 2002. See "In response to our continuing decline in our revenues and our net losses..." below.

        We cannot predict how long or severe this downturn will be or whether any actions taken or proposed by the government will be effective
to bolster the economy. However, we do not expect the downturn to end in the near future. As a result of this uncertainty, forecasting and
financial and strategic planning are more difficult than usual. If the downturn continues for longer than we expect or becomes more severe, our
business will continue to suffer and we may experience additional declines in sales, as well as continued losses, as our customers curtail their
spending. In addition, the adverse impact of the downturn on the capital markets could impair our ability to raise capital as needed and impede
our ability to expand our business.

We have recently introduced a new business model, including a new type of licensing arrangement, and cannot be sure that the new
model will be successful. Additionally, we expect the transition to the new model will impact the timing of our reported revenues.

        In November 2002, we introduced our Enterprise Platform Initiative, which includes bundled technology into market specific platforms and
an enterprise license model ("ELM"). See "�Overview" above for a description of the new business model and ELM. While, we believe that the
introduction of ELM will have significant benefits for our customers, it is possible these benefits may not materialize. There is a risk that
customers may be confused by ELM, that customers will delay or defer product ordering decisions, and that we may not be able to engage a
customer at an appropriate level of management to make an enterprise, subscription order feasible. There is a further risk that we may remain
dependent upon large end-of-quarter transactions, that our selling efforts in coming quarters could be disrupted, and that the transition to ELM
could cause us to incur unanticipated administrative and other costs. In any such event, our revenue and earnings for a quarter could be below
our expectations.

        Although ELM licenses represent a potential source of renewable license revenue, there is also a risk that customers will not renew their
licenses at the end of the term. In addition, because an ELM license generally costs less than a perpetual license, there is a risk that customers
who purchase ELM licenses may spend less in the aggregate over the term of the ELM license, than if they had been required to purchase
perpetual licenses under our traditional project-based model. Additionally, because the ELM license includes limited services, customers may
purchase fewer stand-alone services from us, which could negatively impact our services revenues. Although we expect many of our strategic
and major customers to adopt ELM for their current needs, they may also transition existing perpetual development seats to ELM terms.

        In the transition of our business model from project-based licensing to ELM, we expect the timing of our reported revenue to be impacted
because under ELM revenue is recognized ratably over the subscription period. Under an ELM license, a small amount of revenue is recognized
during the quarter in which the market specific platform products are purchased. The licensing revenue that is not recognized in the quarter in
which the license is purchased is recorded as deferred revenue and recognized ratably over the remaining term of the subscription period. By
contrast, our traditional project-based license requires a majority of license revenue to be recognized in the quarter in which the products are
purchased with a much smaller amount being deferred and recognized subsequently over the maintenance period. Therefore, an order for an
ELM license will result in lower current-quarter revenue than an equal-sized order for a project-based license. We anticipate that approximately
10% of our new product licenses during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 will transition to the ELM. To the extent that the adoption rate is
higher, we would expect a greater decline in near-term revenue, as well as an even higher increase to deferred revenue.
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In response to our continuing decline in our revenues and our net losses, we have announced a restructuring plan that will be
implemented during the quarter ending January 31, 2003. Our restructuring plan may not result in sufficient cost savings to enable us
to achieve profitability in a difficult economic environment or achieve our business objectives.

        In response to market conditions and the decline in our revenues, in May 2001 and again in May 2002, we implemented restructuring plans
that were designed to align our resources more strategically and control our expenses. In November 2002, we announced another restructuring
plan that will be implemented starting in the fourth quarter ending January 31, 2003. Our current restructuring plan is based on certain
assumptions regarding the cost structure of our business and the nature and severity of the current industry adjustment and general economic
trends. We cannot be certain that the assumptions underlying our current restructuring plan will prove to be accurate. If they are not, our
restructuring plan may not result in the correct alignment of our resources or sufficient cost savings. The May 2001 and May 2002 restructuring
plans involved the implementation of a number of initiatives to streamline our business and focus our investments, including reducing net
headcount by a total of approximately 650 employees across all business functions, implementing cost-control measures such as reducing
executive compensation, implementing a program of office closure days and reducing discretional spending on items such as consulting and
travel. We anticipate that the current restructuring will include additional net headcount reduction of approximately 400 to 500 full-time
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equivalent positions and the implementation of cost-control measures, including facility closures and further reduction in the use of outside
contractors. We recorded restructuring charges of $13.9 million and $28.6 million during the nine months ended October 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. We are currently determining the extent of the cash charge associated with the restructuring announced in November 2002 and the
accounting treatment that applies will depend upon when the final determination of restructuring activities is made, as a result of SFAS 146,
which is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. These measures may adversely affect our ability to realize our
current or future business objectives. Specifically, because our current restructuring is so large, it may cause a disruption to our sales operations.
If that were to occur, our revenues might be adversely impacted. In addition, the costs actually incurred in connection with restructuring actions
may exceed our estimated costs of these actions.

        We may need to refine, expand or extend our current plan, which may involve additional restructuring actions, such as further headcount
reductions, assessing whether we should consider disposing of businesses or product lines and reviewing the recoverability of remaining tangible
and intangible assets. Any decision to further limit investment or to dispose of or otherwise exit additional businesses may result in the recording
of additional accrued liabilities for one-time or other charges, such as work force reduction costs, asset write-downs and contractual settlements.
Current and additional restructuring actions may result in further cash and/or non-cash charges, which could have a material adverse effect on
our business and results of operations. As a result, we cannot be sure that we will return to profitability as a result of our restructuring plan.

Numerous factors may cause our total revenues and operating results to fluctuate significantly from period to period. These fluctuations
increase the difficulty of financial planning and forecasting and may result in decreases in our available cash and declines in the market
price of our stock.

        A number of factors, many of which are outside our control, may cause or contribute to significant fluctuations in our total revenues and
operating results. These fluctuations make financial planning and forecasting more difficult. In addition, these fluctuations may result in
unanticipated decreases in our available cash, which could negatively impact our operations. As discussed more fully below, these
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fluctuations also could increase the volatility of our stock price. Factors that may cause or contribute to fluctuations in our operating results and
revenues include:

�
our implementation of our Enterprise Platform Initiative and use of ELM licenses, as discussed above;

�
the number and timing of orders we receive, including disproportionately higher receipt and shipment of orders in the last
month of the quarter;

�
changes in the length of our products' sales cycles, which increase as our customers' purchase decisions become more
strategic and are made at higher management levels;

�
the success of our customers' products from which we derive our royalty revenue;

�
the mix of our revenues as between sales of products and lower-margin sales of services;

�
our ability to control our operating expenses, including our ability to successfully implement the restructuring plan
announced in November 2002;

�
our ability to continue to develop, introduce and ship competitive new products and product enhancements quickly;

�
possible deferrals of orders by customers in anticipation of new product introductions;

�
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announcements, product introductions and price reductions by our competitors;

�
our ability to manage costs for fixed-price consulting agreements;

�
seasonal product purchases by our customers, which prior to fiscal 2002 were historically higher in our fourth fiscal quarter,
but will have a more limited positive impact during the current quarter because of our transition to the ELM licensing model;

�
changes in business cycles that affect the markets in which we sell our products;

�
economic conditions in the United States and international markets; and

�
foreign currency exchange rates.

        One or more of the foregoing factors may cause our operating expenses to be disproportionately high or may cause our net revenue and
operating results to fluctuate significantly. Results from prior periods are thus not necessarily indicative of the results of future periods.

We have substantial commitments, which could make it difficult for us to obtain financing and deplete our cash reserves. Additionally,
these commitments could be accelerated in certain circumstances, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

        As of October 31, 2002, we had $150.0 million in outstanding indebtedness under our 3.75% notes and $57.4 million in long-term
obligations under the lease financings of our facilities in Alameda, California. As of October 31, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents of
$45.5 million, short-term investments of $29.6 million, investments with maturities of greater than one year of $157.6 million and restricted cash
of $63.7 million. The indenture under which our convertible subordinated notes were issued provides that an event of default occurs if we (or
one of our significant subsidiaries) fails to pay, at final maturity or upon acceleration, any indebtedness for money borrowed in an outstanding
principal amount in excess of $35.0 million, including lease commitments, and the indebtedness is not discharged, or the default is not cured,
waived or rescinded within 60 days after written notice is provided in accordance with the terms of the indenture.
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         In November 2002, our Board of Directors authorized management to exercise the purchase option under our two operating leases for our
Alameda headquarters. Management expects Wind River may complete the purchase during the quarter ending January 31, 2003 or April 30,
2003. In connection with the exercise of the purchase option, we will be required to pay to the lender an aggregate purchase price of $57.4 but
will release a total of $60.3 million from restricted cash, which amount has been held as collateral relating to the operating leases. If the purchase
option is not consummated within the anticipated timeframe and there is a substantial decline in value of the buildings prior to the consummation
of the purchase option, we might be required to record a charge, which, depending on its magnitude, could have a material adverse affect on our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

        See "�Liquidity and Capital Resources" above for a further discussion of our synthetic leases and other commitments.

We face intense competition in the embedded software industry, which could decrease demand for our products or cause us to reduce
our prices.

        The embedded software industry is characterized by rapid change, new and complex technology and intense competition. Our ability to
maintain our current market share depends upon our ability to satisfy customer requirements, enhance existing products and develop and
introduce new products. We expect the intensity of competition to increase in the future. Increased competitiveness may result in reductions in
the prices of our products, run-time royalties and services, lower-than-expected gross margins or loss of market share, any of which would harm
our business.

        Our primary competition comes from internal research and development departments of companies that develop embedded systems
in-house. In many cases, companies that develop operating systems in-house have already made significant investments of time and effort in
developing their own internal systems, making acceptance of our products as a replacement more difficult. Additionally, many of these in-house
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departments may use open-source software, such as the Linux operating system, which is royalty-free. Due to the poor economic conditions in
the high-technology sector and resulting cost-constraints, many companies have turned to Linux as an alternative to commercial software
products such as ours. We also compete with independent software vendors and, to a limited extent, with open-source vendors. Some of the
companies that develop embedded systems in-house and some of these independent software vendors, such as Microsoft Corporation, have
significantly greater financial, technical, marketing, sales and other resources and significantly greater name recognition than we do.

        Demands for rapid change and the increasing complexity of the technology in our industry intensify the competition we face. In addition,
our competitors may consolidate or establish strategic alliances to expand product offerings and resources or address new market segments. As a
result, they may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements or to devote greater
resources to the development, promotion, sale and support of their products. These factors favor larger competitors that have the resources to
develop new technologies or to respond more quickly with new product offerings or product enhancements. We may be unable to meet the pace
of rapid development set by our competitors or may incur additional costs attempting to do so, which may cause declines in our operating
results. Our competitors may foresee the course of market developments more accurately than we do and could in the future develop new
technologies that compete with our products or even render our products obsolete, any of which could adversely affect our competitive position.
The accessibility of the open source code promotes rapid technological changes from contributors in the open-source community, and
open-source vendors may be able to respond more quickly to these changes.
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If we do not continue to address new and rapidly changing markets and increasingly complex technologies successfully and deliver our
products on a timely basis, our revenues and operating results will decline.

        The market for embedded software is characterized by ongoing technological developments, evolving industry standards and rapid changes
in customer requirements and product offerings in the embedded market. Our success depends upon our ability to adapt and respond to these
changes in a timely and cost-effective manner. If we fail to continually update our existing products to keep them current with customer needs or
to develop new or enhanced products to take advantage of new technologies, emerging standards, and expanding customer requirements, our
existing products could become obsolete and our financial performance would suffer. We have from time to time experienced delays in the
commercial release of new technologies, new products and enhancements of existing products. These delays are commonplace in the software
industry due to the complexity and unpredictability of the development work required. We must effectively market and sell new product
offerings to key customers, because once a customer has designed a product with a particular operating system, that customer typically is
reluctant to change its supplier due to the significant related costs. If we cannot adapt or respond in a cost-effective and timely manner to new
technologies and new customer requirements, sales of our products could decline.

The costs of software development can be high, and we may not realize revenues from our development efforts for a substantial period
of time.

        Introducing new products that rapidly address changing market demands requires a continued high level of investment in research and
development. Our product development and engineering expenses were $18.0 million, or 31% of total revenues, for the three months ended
October 31, 2002 compared to $21.6 million, or 27% of total revenues, for the three months ended October 31, 2001. Our product development
and engineering expenses were $56.5 million, or 30% of total revenues, for the nine months ended October 31, 2002 compared to $68.7 million,
or 25% of total revenues, for the nine months ended October 31, 2001. As we undertake the extensive capital outlays to address the changes in
the embedded market, we may be unable to realize revenue as soon as we may expect. These costs associated with software development are
increasing, including the costs of recruiting and retaining engineering talent and acquiring or licensing new technologies. Our investment in new
and existing market opportunities prior to our ability to generate revenue from these new opportunities may adversely affect our operating
results.

Because a significant portion of our revenue is derived from royalties, we are dependent upon the ability of our customers to develop
and penetrate new markets successfully and to pay royalties.

        Our operating systems and middleware products are embedded in end-user products developed and marketed by our customers, and we
receive royalty fees for each copy of our operating system and middleware products embedded in those products. Therefore, our royalty
revenues depend both upon our ability to successfully negotiate royalty agreements with our customers and, in turn, upon our customers'
successful commercialization of their underlying products. In particular, we derive significant revenue from customers that develop products in
highly competitive and technologically complex areas such as Internet infrastructure, servers and storage, digital consumer, aerospace and
defense, industrial control and automotive. If these customers sell fewer products or otherwise face significant economic difficulties, our
revenues will decline. For example, in the nine months ended October 31, 2002, our revenues from run-time royalties declined 16% as compared
to the nine months ended October 31, 2001, which we believe is primarily due to our customers' response to the existing current market
conditions in the high-technology sector. We cannot control these customers' product development or commercialization or predict their success.
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In addition, we depend on our customers to accurately report the use of their products in order for us to collect our run-time royalties. If our
customers are
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not successful with their products or do not accurately report use of their products, our royalty revenues may decline significantly. Additionally,
because Linux is royalty-free, we may be forced to reduce the prices of our run-time royalties, which may cause our revenues and profit margins
to decline.

Our significant international business activities subject us to increased costs and economic risks.

        We develop and sell a substantial percentage of our products internationally. For the three months ended October 31, 2002, revenues from
international sales were $23.6 million, or 40% of total revenue, as compared to $31.6 million, or 39% of total revenue, for three months ended
October 31, 2001. For the nine months ended October 31, 2002, revenues from international sales were $78.1 million, or 42% of total revenue,
as compared to $103.7 million, or 38% of total revenue, for nine months ended October 31, 2001. Additionally, we have investments in, or have
made acquisitions of, companies located outside the United States. Over the long-term, we expect to continue to make investments to further
support and expand our international operations and increase our direct sales force in Europe and Asia. Risks inherent in international operations
include:

�
the imposition of governmental controls and regulatory requirements;

�
the costs and risks of localizing products for foreign countries;

�
differences in business cultures and sales cycles;

�
differences in operation and sales support expenses;

�
unexpected changes in tariffs, import and export restrictions and other barriers and restrictions;

�
greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection;

�
the restrictions on repatriation of earnings;

�
exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates;

�
the burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws;

�
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign subsidiaries and branch operations;

�
difficulties in integrating products and operations from foreign acquisitions;

�
exposure to local economic slowdowns; and

�
the need to guarantee credit instruments extended to support foreign operations, in particular in Japan.
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        Any of these events, regionally and as a whole, could reduce our international sales and increase our costs of doing business internationally
and have a material adverse effect on our gross margins and net operating results.

Integrating the companies we have acquired and costs associated with acquisitions and investments may disrupt our business and harm
our operating results.

        We anticipate that, as part of our business strategy, we will continue to acquire or make investments in business, products and technologies
that complement ours. These investments and acquisitions can be expensive and difficult to manage and integrate. We have incurred significant
costs in connection with acquisition transactions in recent fiscal years and may incur significant costs in connection with future transactions,
whether or not they are consummated. Acquisitions involve additional risks including, among others, difficulties in integrating the operations,
technologies, and products of the acquired companies; the risk of diverting management's attention from normal daily operations of the business;
and potential difficulties in completing projects associated with in-process
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research and development. We may not be successful in integrating the business, products, technologies and personnel we acquire. Similarly, we
cannot guarantee that our investments will yield a significant return, if any. If we cannot successfully manage the integration of our acquisitions
or are unable to realize the benefits of, or anticipated revenues from, our acquisitions, our business, financial condition and operating results
could suffer.

        Additionally, if revenues associated with acquired businesses do not meet our original expectations, acquisitions may result in charges
relating to impairment of acquired goodwill and purchased intangibles. During fiscal 2002, we identified indicators of possible impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assets relating to acquisitions made in earlier years. As a result of our impairment review, we recorded an
aggregate charge of $257.4 million for the impairment of goodwill and purchased intangibles relating to our acquisitions of Embedded Support
Tools Corporation, AudeSi Technologies, Inc., Rapid Logic, Inc., ICESoft AS and Software Development Systems, Inc. As a result of the
restructuring plan announced in November 2002 and other potential indicators that arose after the quarter ended October 31, 2002, Wind River's
management has commenced an impairment review and will record a charge, if necessary, based on the outcome of the review.

Failure of our current and planned information systems, controls and infrastructure to adequately manage and support our anticipated
growth and global operations could disrupt our business.

        We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience in the long term, both through acquisitions and internal expansion, significant
growth in our headcount and in the scope, complexity and geographic reach of our operations. To support this expansion, we must standardize,
integrate and improve our management controls, reporting systems and procedures and information technology infrastructure. To implement
those improvements, we must purchase, develop and maintain complex and expensive information management systems. Our current and
planned systems, procedures and controls may not be adequate to support our future operations. Failure of these systems to meet our needs and
an inability to efficiently integrate and expand support worldwide could disrupt our operations. Our ability to manage this growth is complicated
by the need to implement headcount reductions and cost-control measures in the short term in response to general economic conditions and
declining revenues. See "Our restructuring plans may not result in sufficient cost savings to enable us to achieve profitability in a difficult
economic environment" above.

Our common stock price is subject to volatility.

        In recent years, the stock markets in general and the shares of technology companies in particular have experienced extreme price
fluctuations. These recent price fluctuations have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of the companies
affected. Our stock price has similarly experienced significant volatility; as reported on the Nasdaq National Market, during fiscal 2002 our
stock had a high sales price of $37.75 and a low sales price of $9.70 and, during the nine months ended October 31, 2002, our stock had a high
sales price of $18.35 and a low sales price of $2.03. The last sale price of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on
December 10, 2002 was $4.67. In recent fiscal quarters, we have experienced shortfalls in revenue and earnings from levels expected by
securities analysts and investors, which have had an immediate and significant adverse effect on the trading price of our common stock. These
factors relating to the fluctuations in our revenues and operating results will continue to affect our stock price. Comments by or changes in
estimates from securities analysts as well as significant developments involving our competitors or our industry could also affect our stock price.
In addition, the market price of our common stock is affected by the stock performance of other technology companies generally, as well as
companies in our industry and our customers in particular. Other broad market and industry factors may negatively affect our operating results or
cause our stock price to decline, as may general political
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or economic conditions in the United States and globally, such as recessions, or interest rate or currency fluctuations.

The rights we rely upon to protect the intellectual property underlying our products may not be adequate, which could enable third
parties to use our technology and reduce our ability to compete.

        Our success depends significantly upon the proprietary technology contained in our products. We currently rely on a combination of
patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secret laws, and contractual provisions to establish and protect our intellectual property rights in our
technology and products. We cannot be certain that the steps we take to protect our intellectual property will adequately protect our rights, that
others will not independently develop or otherwise acquire equivalent or superior technology, or that we can maintain our technology as trade
secrets. In addition, discovery and investigation of unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult. We expect software piracy, which is
difficult to detect, to be a persistent problem, particularly in those foreign countries where the laws may not protect our intellectual property as
fully as in the United States. Employees, consultants, and others who participate in the development of our products may breach their
agreements with us regarding our intellectual property. We might not have adequate remedies for infringement or breach of our proprietary
rights by third parties, employees or consultants. Further, we have in the past initiated, and in the future may initiate, claims or litigation against
third parties for infringement or breach of our proprietary rights or to establish the validity of our proprietary rights. Whether or not such
litigation is determined in our favor, such actions could result in significant expense to us, divert the efforts of our technical and management
personnel from productive tasks or cause product shipment delays.

Patent, trademark or copyright infringement or product liability claims against us may result in costly litigation, cause product
shipment delays or require us to expend significant resources. In addition, patent or copyright claims may require us to enter into
royalty or licensing arrangements.

        We occasionally receive communications from third parties alleging patent, trademark or copyright infringement or other intellectual
property claims, and there is always the chance that third parties may assert infringement claims against us or against our customers under
circumstances that might require us to provide indemnification. Additionally, because our products are increasingly used in applications, such as
network infrastructure, transportation, medical and mission-critical business systems, in which the failure of the embedded system could cause
property damage, personal injury or economic loss, we may face product liability claims.

        Although our agreements with our customers typically contain provisions intended to limit our exposure to infringement and liability
claims, these provisions may not be effective in doing so in all circumstances or in all jurisdictions. Any of these types of claims, with or without
merit, could result in claims for indemnification by us or costly litigation, could require us to expend significant resources to develop
non-infringing technology or remedy product defects, cause product shipment delays or require us to pay significant damages if the claims are
successful. In the case of infringement of another party's intellectual property, we may be required to enter into royalty or licensing agreements;
however, we cannot be certain that the necessary licenses will be available or that they can be obtained on commercially reasonable terms. If we
are not successful in defending these claims or, with respect to infringement claims, were to fail to obtain royalty or licensing agreements in a
timely manner and on reasonable terms, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be materially adversely affected.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Sensitivity

        Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relate primarily to our investment portfolio and debt obligations.

        We place our investments with high quality credit issuers and, by policy, limit the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer. As stated in
our policy, our first priority is to reduce the risk of principal loss. Consequently, we seek to preserve our invested funds by limiting default risk,
market risk and reinvestment risk. We mitigate default risk by investing in only high quality credit securities that we believe to be low risk and
by positioning our portfolio to respond appropriately to a significant reduction in a credit rating of any investment issuer or guarantor. The
portfolio includes only marketable securities with active secondary or resale markets to ensure portfolio liquidity.
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        We believe an immediate 100 basis point move in interest rates affecting our floating and fixed rate financial instruments as of October 31,
2002 would have an immaterial effect on our pretax earnings. We also believe an immediate 100 basis point move in interest rates would have
an immaterial effect on the fair value of our fixed income securities.

        In March 1998, we entered into a 5.9% interest rate swap to mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates on our floating interest rate
operating lease for our new headquarters. As of October 31, 2002, the notional amount of the interest rate swap was $28.5 million. In
January 2001, we entered into a 5.6% interest rate swap to mitigate the impact of interest rate changes on our second floating interest rate
operating lease for the additional construction of our headquarters facility. The notional amount of this interest rate swap was $27.9 million as of
October 31, 2002. The estimated fair value of the interest rate swap liabilities was $5.0 million at October 31, 2002 and $2.6 million at
January 31, 2002. In November 2002, we terminated these interest rate swap agreements. As a result, during the quarter ending January 31,
2003, we will record a cash-charge of $3.9 million relating to the liability for such interest rate swap agreement and will reduce restricted cash
by $3.4 million, the amount previously held in restricted cash as collateral for the interest rate swap agreements.

Foreign Currency Risk

        We enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to manage foreign currency exposures related to certain foreign currency
denominated inter-company balances. Additionally, we may adjust our foreign currency hedging position by taking out additional contracts or
by terminating or offsetting existing forward contracts. These adjustments may result from changes in the underlying foreign currency exposures
or from fundamental shifts in the economics of particular exchange rates. Gains and losses on terminated forward contracts, or on contracts that
are offset, are recognized in income in the period of contract termination or offset. Our ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to currency
fluctuations will depend on the currency exchange rates and other factors in effect as the contracts mature. As of October 31, 2002, we had
outstanding forward contracts with notional amounts of $11.6 million and no outstanding forward contracts as of January 31, 2002.

Equity Price Risk

        We own 338,652 shares of common stock of e-Sim that was purchased prior to e-Sim's public offering in July 1998 at $6.35 per share. On
October 31, 2002, the closing price of e-Sim's stock was $0.12 per share. We own 90,909 shares of common stock of Tvia, Inc. that was
purchased at $11.00 per share prior to Tvia's public offering in August 2000. On October 31, 2002, the closing price of Tvia's stock was $0.56
per share. We own 400,000 shares of common stock of Insignia Solutions, Ltd. purchased in February 2001 at a cost of $5.00 per share. On
October 31, 2002, the closing price of Insignia was $0.38 per share.
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        We value our publicly held investments using the closing price of the stock at the end of each month. As a result, we reflect these
investments on our balance sheet as of October 31, 2002, as long-term investments, at their aggregate market value of approximately $244,000.
During the three and nine months ended October 31, 2002, we recorded an impairment charge on these publicly held investments of $208,000
and $467,000, respectively, and $4.3 million for both the three and nine months ended October 31, 2001, which represented the amount of
other-than-temporary decline as of the date of impairment.

        We also have certain other minority investments in private companies. These investments are inherently risky because the markets for the
technologies or products they have under development are typically in the early stages and might never develop. As a result of prior
write-downs, we have no remaining investment book value on our balance sheet relating to private companies as of October 31, 2002. These
investments had previously been included as a component of other long-term assets on our balance sheet and were carried at cost.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

        Wind River maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in its filings
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the periods specified in the rules and forms
of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Our management,
including the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer, recognizes that any set of controls and procedures, no matter how
well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.
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        Within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, Wind River has carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of its management, including Wind River's principal executive officer and Wind River's principal financial
officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures. Based on such evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that Wind River's disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

(b) Changes in internal controls.

        There have been no significant changes in Wind River's internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect the internal
controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation in connection with the preparation of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q.
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PART II�OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

        Not applicable.

ITEM 2. CHANGES IN SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

        Not applicable.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

        Not applicable.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

        Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

        In accordance with Section 10A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as promulgated by Section 202 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has approved the following non-audit services to be performed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent auditors: (1) accounting advisory services with respect to SEC filings; (2) accounting advisory
services related to acquisitions; (3) tax-related services; and (4) other accounting consultation and assistance as permitted by the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a)
Exhibits

Not applicable.
(b)

Report on Form 8-K
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Not applicable.
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SIGNATURE

        Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: December 16, 2002 WIND RIVER SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /s/  MICHAEL W. ZELLNER      

Michael W. Zellner
Vice President, Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

        I, Thomas St. Dennis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Wind River Systems, Inc., certify that:

1.
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Wind River Systems, Inc.;

2.
Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this quarterly report.

4.
The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a)
designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
quarterly report is being prepared;

b)
evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing
date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c)
presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on
our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5.
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The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons fulfilling the equivalent function):

a)
all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b)
any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal controls; and

6.
The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 16, 2002 By: /s/  THOMAS ST. DENNIS      

Thomas St. Dennis
President and Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

        I, Michael Zellner, Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Wind River Systems, Inc., certify that:

1.
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Wind River Systems, Inc.;

2.
Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this quarterly report;

4.
The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a)
designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
quarterly report is being prepared;

b)
evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing
date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c)
presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on
our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
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5.
The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons fulfilling the equivalent function):

a)
all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b)
any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal controls; and

6.
The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 16, 2002 By: /s/  MICHAEL ZELLNER      

Michael Zellner
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

        In connection with the Quarterly Report of Wind River Systems, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending October 31,
2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Thomas St. Dennis, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1)
The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)
The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: December 16, 2002 By: /s/  THOMAS ST. DENNIS      

Thomas St. Dennis
President and Chief Executive Officer

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
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SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

        In connection with the Quarterly Report of Wind River Systems, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending October 31,
2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Michael Zellner, Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

(1)
The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)
The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: December 16, 2002 By: /s/  MICHAEL ZELLNER      

Michael Zellner
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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